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KFT ENTITY INFORMATION 6( MANAGEMENT

Background information
The corporation was established under the Tourism Act of 201I that came into

operation on lst September 2012.

Prlncipal Activities

The principal activities of the Corporation are to:
a. organize and host meetintr and provide incentives for conferences and

exhibitions at the Convention Centrel

b. Develop and implement the national meetings, incentives for conferences and

exhibitions strategy, in collaboration with the Tourism Board upon consultation

with the relevant stakeholders:

c. Market the Convention Centre, in collaboration with the Tourism Board: and

d. Perform any other functions that are ancillary to the obiect and purpose for

which the Convention Centre is established.

Corporate Headquarters: Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre,

P.O. Box 30745 - 00100

KICC Building
Harambee Avenue

Nairobi. KENYA

Corporate Contacts: Telephone: (254)-20-2247 27 7. 3620000
Fax: (254)-20-310223

E-mail: info@kicc.co.ke.

Website: www.kicc.co.ke

Corporate Bankers: Kenya Commercial Bank

KICC Branch, Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 46950-0010O
City Square 002OO

Nairobi, Kenya

Co-operative Bank of Kenya

City Hall Branch

P.O Box,14805-00100
Nairobi
Kenya
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lndependent Audltors: Auditor Gentrat
Office of the Auditor General (OAG)
Anniversary Towers, Universlty Way
P.O. Box 3O084

GPO 00roo
Nairobi. Kenya

Prindpal legal advlsor: The Attorney General,
State law Office & Department of Justice
P.O BOX 40112

City Square 00200
Harambee Avenue
Nairobi, Kenya
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2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

,&/,)
I

Hon Adelina
Mwau, OGW.

Chairperson MasterJ in Development Studies
Diploma in Adult Education
lmmediate former Deputy Governor,
Makueni County
Over 40 years in private and public
serv ice

Patricia Ondeng' Ag. Chief
Executive
Officer/Secreta

ry to the
Board

. Master of Arts in Communication
Corporate & Development
Communication

. Bachelor's in Business and Office
Management

. Certified lnternational Public
Relations

. Member PRSK

. Certified Professional Mediator

. Trained QMS Auditor
' Strategic Leadership Development

Program
. Over 25 years working experience

in Tourism industry in
Communication and Marketing.

Angella Mueni lndependent
Director

Bachelor of Science in Statistics
Diploma in Front office Operations
and Management
Former Secretary to Board, Machakos
County
Over 1O years work experience in
administration

Catherine
Ntinyari Kubania

lndependent
Director

Bachelor of procurement and Supply
chain management.
Higher Diploma in Business
Management and Administration.
Diploma in international Business
Communacation,
Certifacate in public Relations.
Under-graduate,Bachelor of science;
Environmental Studies.
Over 15 yrs Experience in
procurement,Sales &
Marketing,Busines5 Management &
Administration.
8 yrs Experience in Hospitality and

Event Orgernising.
Founder-6reen Circle Foundation
(Climate change and Environmental
Conservation Advocacy)
Current Occupation; Climate Justice
Advocacy.
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Bachelors in Development Studies and
Economics
Diploma in Mass Communication and
Media Relations

MbotoMgeni
Hassan

lndependent
Directors

MBA Business Administration
Marketing (Management)
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business

Administration
Advanced Diploma in Business studies

Abdullahi Omar
Borai

lndependent
Diredor

lndependent
Director

. MBA in Strategic Management

. CPA(K)

. Member ICPAK

. Over 35 years in senior management
in the hospitality industry and private
security services sector.

. Over 25 years boardroom experience
in the private sector

Solomon Mugwe

John Chirchir Chief Executive
Officer - KTB

Representative
Principal
Secretary,
National
Treasury

. M5c Economics

. BA (Hons)

. Member ESK

. Over 20 years' experience in
Treasury/Financial Management,
Procurement, Budgeting and
Research.

. YOB l97l

Ms. Winnie
Katanu Mwalimu

. lnternational School of Tourism
Sciences, Post 6raduate Diploma in
Specialization in Tourism

. Kenya lnstitute of Administration -
Certificate in French Language

. Moi University, Nairobi Campus

. University of Nairobi -Bachelor of
Arts

. Degree in 6eography and Political
5cience

Bernard Kahuthia Reprerentative
Principal
Secretary
State
Department
for Tourism
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3. BOARD COMMITTEES

^uring the year under review, the board was not fully conrtituted and therefore, there were
,,o board committees.
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4. SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM
Patricia
Ondeng'

Ag. Chief
Executive
Officer

. Master of Arts in
Communication Corporate &
Development Communication

. Bachelor's in Business and Office
Management

. Certified lnternational Public
Relations

. Member PRSK

. Certified Professional Mediator

. Trained QMS Auditor

. Strategic Leadership Development
Program

. Over 25 years working experience in
Tourism industry in Communication
and Marketi

Mr.
Ceoffrey
Thande

Director-
Business
Development

. MBA-lnternational Business.

. BA-Economics.

. Over '17 Years' experience in
Marketing, strate8y, Stakeholder
Management, Product Development,
Competitive Analysis and Customer
Service

. YOB 1977

I

Gomeri
Kombo

Director-
Operations

. BA Hospitality Management

. Diploma in hotel management
(5witzerland)

. Over 20 years' experience in
hospitality industry

. YOB 1970
c5
Janefrance
s Mutisya

Corporation
Secretary-
Director Legal
Services

LLM - Corporate Covernance.
LLB.
Post Graduate Diploma (KSL).

cPs (K).
Proficiency Certificate in 6erman.
Accredited Governance and Legal
Auditor.
Member, lC5: LSK

Over 2O years' experience in Legal
practice and Corporate Law/Practice.
YOB 1974.

Hashim
Hamed

Director-
Corporate
Planning

. MBA Strategic Management

. Bachelor of Commerce (Finance)

. Diploma (French)

. Over l1 years' experience
Marketing and 5trategy
. YOB 1983

ln
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(

f,

Director
Corporate
Services

' MBA Finance
. BBA (Accounting and Finance)
. LLB. cPA (K). cPs (K)

' AKIB
Over 19 years' experience in Finance,
Accounting, Banking, Administration &
Corporate Governance in public and
private iector

cPA, C5

James
Mwaura
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5. CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the KICC Board of Directort. I am pleased to share with you the financial
year 2022-2023 annual report and financial statement for the year ending 30 June.
2023. ljoined the KICC family recently and I must admit that I am thrilled to be part of
theis family and more so honoured to be the chairperson of the Board of Directors.

I am glad to join the MICE tourism industry when the tourism sector is on a positive
trajectory and its performance is steadily increasing after the set-back the industry
experienced following the effects of COVID l9 Pandemic. lt is indeed satisfying to note
that there has been significant growth in the lndustry with the Meetings, lncentives.
Conferences and Exhibitions (MICE) Sector contributing B.Bolo to Kenya's Gross
Domestic Product (6DP) and generating approximately Kshs 1.05 billion in revenue as

per the Kenya National Bureau of Statistics report of 2022.

The 6lobal MICE market was also valued at Kshs 876.42 billion and is expected to
have a compound annual growth rate of 7.5o/o from 2023 to 2024.

As a Corporation we recorded an increase of 360/o in revenue during the financial year
2022-2023 from Kshs. 669.533,884.00 to Kshs. 909,877,688.00, and Kshs

423.480,684, form other incomes which constitute:

Casual Parking 3,482,4OO
Tower viewing 19,7 1 8,284
Other sources 280,000
GoK grant-Recu rrent 4OO.000,00O

KICC will continue to build on its impreisive performance this year by executing more
innovative business strate8ies.

The Centre will further develop and implement Corporate strategies geared towards
growing the Convention Centre's MICE business. To achieve this, the Corporation with
the support of His Excellenry President William Ruto is undertaking major
refurbishment of some of the conference facilities to modernize them, expand their
functionalities as well as their aesthetic value.

On environmental sustainability. the Corporation planted 500 trees at Orange Primary
School and Kisumu Convention Centre in Kisumu. This is also in adhering to the
presidential directive that aims for 3Oo/o forest cover by planting 15 billion trees by
2032.

Finally. I express my gratitude to all the Board Members. the entire KICC fraternity, and
the stakeholders for their overwhelming rupport and request for the same in the near
futu re.

Thank you

Hon. Adelina Mwau, OGW
Chairperson of the Board of Directort
Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre

x
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6. STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The financial year had a tremendous growth in the meetings industry post COVID l9.
The sector had full resumption of face to face meetings. Recent 2022 Kenya National
Bureau of Statisticr (KNBS) report on performance of the sector ha, rhown that
Meetings. lncentives. Conferences and Exhibitions (MICE) industry in Kenya is

recovering faster than the leisure sector Post-Covid 
,I9.

The Corporation, in achievinS its core mandate of promoting and marketing the
destination and hosting meetings, conferences and Exhibitions, employed several
marketing strategier to position the destination as preferred for conference tourism in
the region.

KICC led several industry players from the private sector to market the Kenya in
various international marketing shows like Meetings Africa. IMEX Cermany among
others. At the shows. several leads were identified and are being follow up for
business closure-

The Centre further. in collaboration with local associations and organizations placed
several bids to ho5t international conferences and we are glad to announce that the
dertination won two bids. The lnternational Association of Science Parks 2O24 and
World Federation of the Deaf lnternational Conference in 2025.

On local marketing, the Corporation revived County MICE marketing and awareness
creation dubbed'MICE MASHINANI. The initiative is aimed at exploring the potential
Kenya has on MICE. The product mapping has been done and activitiei are scheduled
to begin in April 2O24

The Corporation also undertook stakeholder management initiatives aimed at
rebuilding KICC internal and external stakeholder relations. The Corporation
undertook these deliberate steps to engage KICC stakeholders in a bid to improve
relationship as well as form alliances and partnerships with the external stakeholders
for MICE growth. Internally the Corporation engaged with ;taff to identify critical
areas of improvement with a view of improving staff morale and work environment

xl
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Business Performance
During the year under review, The Corporation achieved a turnover of Kshs. 9O9.9
from sales and l(hs 43 5,480.684. form other incomes which constitute:

Casual Parking 3,482.4OO
Tower viewing 19,718,284
Other sources 280,00O
CoK grant-Recurrent 400.000.000

This is in comparison to lths 669.5Million from the previous financial year posting a
profit Kshs. 82.2 Million after tax and achieved a Profit Before Tax of Kshs. 117.4
million.

During the period the Corporation continued to employ stringent measurer in itt
operations as guided by the government directives.
KICC however maximized its revenue on other revenue streams like rent and leased
parking. There has been remarkable improvement in parking revenue collections (from
approximately Kshs 46,000 to tths 86,000 weekly). Tower viewing revenue has also
improved.

Conference revenue went up 600/o to Khs. 'l8l.3Million, leased parking registered an
increase of 3olo increase to Khs '193.5 million, Tower viewing was up by 73o/o from
Kshs. 5.3 Million. and rent income was up by 4o/o to lths. 310.9 Million.

Modernization and upgrade of outdoor meeting room
During the period the Corporation undertook minor Centre facelift. The Corporation
further mobilized for funds for the upgrade of the Centre to make it modern and
competitive in the region. The major refurbishment of the facilitier are rtarting in the
new financial year.

Employee Productivity
The Corporation has continued to recoSnize the need
development. During the year. the Corporation carried
sensitization activities to increase capacity and performance.

for
out

and
and

staff training
staff training

Finally, I would like to thank all the KICC staff for their immersed contribution,
handwork. dedication and focus on driving the Corporation's core mandate.

PEticia Ondeng'

As. Chief Executive Officer

xu
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Corporate Governance relates to internal means by which Corporations are directed,
controlled and held to account. This is done with a view to ensuring that,
corporations attain their long-term value of shareholders while taking into
consideration the interests of other stakeholders. The Governance structures of
Corporations stipulates rules and procedures of certain organizations and at the same
time identifies the manner of dirtribution of rights amongst different stakeholders such

as Board of Directors, Managers, Shareholders. Creditors and Auditors. The Board of
Directors of Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre is responsible for the
Governance of the Corporation. While discharging its function5, it is accountable to
shareholders and stakeholders in ensuring that it complies with all set regulationr and
business ethics. Similarly. the Board adheres to the Senerally accepted Corporate
Covernance procedures as stipulated in the existing Governances' Codes and also
embraces the internationally accepted principles and best practices of Corporate
6overnance.

The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors Comprises of nine (9) Directors. six of which are independent
non-executive Directors including the Chairman.

The Board of Directors directs the Corporation generally. lts basic role in directing the
Corporation entails the formulation of the Corporation's Strategic Objectives, Policy
Making, Supervision of Executive Management and Accountability to Stakeholders.
The Directors entrench a wealth of experience. relevant expertise and knowledge,
while deliberating on major irrues pertaining to the organization. Except for direction
and guidance in general Policy, the Board of Directort delegates the authority of day
to day business operations of the organization to the Management through the Chief
Executive Officer.

ln discharging its onerous function, the Board of Directors is assisted by a Corporation
Secretary who attends all Board meetings except the Audit Committee Meetingr. The
Corporation Secretary advises the Board in respect of Corporate Governance issues as

well as legal and regulatory requirements pertaining to the Corporation.

Board Meetings
The Board holds regular meetings as provided by the Corporation's Board Calendar
and as stipulated under the relevant statutes. Special meetings may however be
convened when the Corporation deems it necessary to do so.

During the year under review, the Board held 3 special Board meeting and. ln light of
the fact that, KICC 15 a State Corporation, the lnspector General of State Corporations
is invited to attend the Corporation's Board meetings both Committees and Full Board
Meetings as an ex-official. The lnspector General exercises an oversight and advisory
role in such meetings in accordance with the State Corporations Act.

xlll
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No Board Member
Scheduled
Meetings

Special
Meetings Total

Hon. Adelina Mwau. OCW
2 Angelline Mueni Mulinge t'' )
3 Solomon Mugwe
4 John Chirchir I
5 Abdullahi Omar Borai
6 Bernard Kahuthia-Rep P5 Tourism
7 Winnie Mwalimu-Rep PS Treasury
I Ceorge Ombua
9 Catherine Ntinyari
t0 Mgeni Mboto Hassan

The Members. and membership to various Committees is as follows:-

Committees of the Board

During the year under review. the board was not fully constituted and therefore did not
have the various committees prescribed under the ttate corporations Act. Tourism Act
and the Mwongozo code of regulation.

5uccession Plan

The Board members of the Convention Centre are appointed at different times such

that. the respective expiry dates of their terms of office shall fall at different times.

Board Remuneration
The aggregate amount paid to Directors in terms of sitting allowances for services

rendered during financial year 2O22/2O2 3 are disclosed in the Financial Statements

under Note 27 (ii). Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting allowances for any

meeting attended.

Risk Management and lnternal Controls
The Corporation has defined procedures and financial controls to ensure its
accounting information is complete and accurate. These include systems for
obtaining approvals for all transactions and strict adherence to laws and regulations

that have significant financial implications. The Board takes into consideration the

results of work carried out to Audit and review the activities of the Corporation
with a view to ascertaining the effectiveness of internal control systems. The Board

also considers the Management accounts for each year. reportt from each Board

Committee, annual budgetary proposals. and strategic opportunities for the

Corporation.

lnformation and Board Developments
The Board shall be supplied with detailed Board Papers and reports on business to
be conducted at each meetinS in advance. All Directors shall have acces5. advice

and services of the Corporation Secretary. Where necessary the Directors may access

external legal advice.

xtv
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To update their skills and expertise in discharging board functions, directors are

required to receive induction training on appointment. ln addition, they are also

required to attend trainings suited to their needs and expertire required to
perform their duties regularly.

xv
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SECTION A

KICC's operational and financial performance

Performance of KICC's Core mandates

i. To facilitate the Modernization and Expansion of KICC; the Corporation is carrying

out a review of its modernization master plan for the KICC facility which outlines
pro,fects to be implemented. During the period under review, KICC is undertaking a
refurbishment of the Tsavo Ball room, repair of Amphi Theatre, ICT infrastructure

and rehabilitation of water fountain
i. MICE destination Marketingl ln terms of participating in international exhibitions the

Corporation participated in IMEX Frankfurt in May 2023, and Meetings Africa in
Johannesburg in February 2022.

i. Some of the successful bids undertaken are: -lCASA,24th UNWTO Conference,

lnternational women engineers and Scientists 2023, SESTECH Technology

Conference and Expo,36rh lnternational Society for Music Education World
conference 2024, INTERCOL congress 2025,lAS on HIV Science in 2023 and African
Development Bank ACM.

Revenues

The Corporation's main revenue ttreams includet conference/exhibitions & events, renta

income, parking fees, tower viewing and third-party revenues. ln total. the Corporation':
revenue for the year was Kshs. 933.4 Million this included, against a target of Kshs,
'1.00O.6 Million leading to unfavourable variance of Kshs. 67.3 Million. ln comparisor
with the same financial year 2021/2022 the corporation reported revenue of Ksh. 676.€

Million.
During the year the Centre did not achieve its revenue targets on core mandates.

Expenses

The Corporation endeavored to spend within the budget limits. Total expenditure for
the Year was Kshs.648.7 Million inclusive of General Provision for bad debts Kshs. 29.5

Million, depreciation and amortization amounting to KJhs. 58.O9 Million. The total
budget for the Year was Kshs.972.6 Million. There was favorable variance of
Kshs.l26.O8 Million due to cost cuttinS mearures and cost rationalization.
ln comparison to last year. the Corporation total operating expenses for the Year ended

30th June 2022 was Kshs.564.2 Million.
Profit/Loss for the Period

Reported profit for the year (after depreciation but before tax at 307o) was Ksh. 82,2

Million.

xvl
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SECTION B

KICCs compliance with rtatutory requirements

INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS

Our commitment to quality in our services and processes remain steadfast.

Complying to the requirements of ISO 90Ol:2008 ensures that the Corporation not
only retains itJ status as an l5O 9O0l:2008 certified institution but that continuous
improvement, research and development and on-going review of processes is

systematically done to ensure that our processes and strategies remain current and

relevant in the ever-dynamic business environment. ln the long run there is positive

impact on revenue, quality. cottt, and customer satisfaction.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY

The ICT Department continued to collaborate with our business syttems users in order
to identify and exploit opportunitier for utilizing technology solutions to solve business

problems. Among the proiects completed in the period under review include: Enterprise

Resource Planning (ERP) integrating Finance, Stores and Marketing departments,
installation of the internal audit software, and Data Storage offsite backup. ERP will be

finalised through by legal department preparing and signing the contractual agreement.

Data Storage offsite backup war done and is currently under support for the next 3years.

The Corporation is also using the lntegrated Financial Management lnformation System

(lFMlS) for its procurement functions as per the 6overnment requirement to all

Government agencies.

sEcTloN c
Key projects and lnvestment decisions KICC is plannlng/implementing

The outlook for the Meetings, lncentives, Conferences and Exhibitions (MICE) lndustry

remains robust and resilient. M.I.C.E is the fastest growing subsector of tourism. KICC

has the right strateSy, brand, resilience and people to take it to the next phase of
growth. Some of the projects under or due for implementation as per the strategic plan

2O1B/2O22 are:
. Refurbishment of Tsavo Ballroom and Amphi Theatre
. Rehabilitation of water fountain
. Upgrade of ICT infrastructure
. lmprovement of meeting halls and facilities

xvll
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SECTION D

Major risks facing KICC

The Corporation will continue to recognize risk Management as an integral part of the
internal control systems. We will therefore continue to logically and systematically
enSage in the process of establishing. identifying, analysing, evaluating and
communicating risks associated with any activities. functions or processes in a way that
enables the Corporation to minimize losses and maximize opportunities while getting
value for money committed.

Operational Risk

This is the risk of loss arising from systems failure. human error, fraud or external events.
When controls fail to perform. operational risks can cause damage to reputation ar well
as lead to financial loss.

The controls that the Corporation has put in place to minimize the potential risks

include:
a) Effective duty segregation,

b) 5taff sensitization. training and capacity building
c) Definition of authorization levels,

d) Periodic risk assersment,

e) Compliance and conformity with laid down policies and procedures and Acts

governing operations
f) Use of internal auditl and
g) Adherence to systemr of internal control5.

Credit and Liquidity risks

The corporation continues to put measures in place to minimize risk of non-recovery of
debts owed by defunct Covernment Ministries and Departments that were merged.
In compliance with accounting principles, the management will continue to recognise
provisions for bad and doubtful debts in its financial statements.
The corporation cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the Year was Kshs.'128.1

Million held in our various bank accounts. Trade and other receivables balance were
Kshs. 954.03 Million while trade and other payables balance were Kshs.75l.6 Million
Legal risks

Due to l4 pending litigations/cases in court which are at various ,tages of litigation, the
corporation is likely to incur costs with regard to legal costs. penalties and interests. This
is purely dependent on the outcome i.e. whether it is unfavourable.

xvlu



Kenyatta lntemational Convention Centre Flnandal Statements for the year ended 30th June 2O23

SECTION E

' lvlaterlal amea6 ln statutory/financlal obllgatlons

Trade and Other payables
Provisions for other pending bills
VAT Uability
Provisions for Upgrade Of ERP rystem
Provislons for gratuity
Provirlons 5alary Review
Provision for legal contingency
Provislon for Telephone allowances
Accrued expenses
Corporation tax

r53,805,O53
83,908,475
31,296,960

30.00o,000
15,784,O73

220,000.0o0
r32.780.000

r7,220.O00
14,37s.976
35,213,374

734,383,9il

xlx



Kenyatta International Convention Centre Financial Staternents for tlre year ended 3Oth June 2O23

SECTION F

KICCs financial improbity and serious govemance iisues

Corporate Governance is the process by which Corporations are directed. controlled
and held to account. The Board of Directors are responsible for the long-term strategic
goals of the Corporation while being accountable to the shareholders for legal

compliance and maintenance of the highest Corporate Covernance and business

ethics.

An independent Board manager the business of the Corporation. The Board is keen

on reviewing the overall framework of the internal controls and the assessment of
Management process and the adoption of the appropriate codes of ethics. lt is also

responsible for ensuring that the Corporation complies with the law and highest

standards of Corporate and business ethics. The Board currently comprises members

drawn from public and private iectors.

The Corporation is committed to fighting corruption and other social vices in the
work place. The corporation has adopted the government's zero tolerance approach
to corruption and it has put in place mechanisms to control corruption. ln this regard

a corruption prevention committee has already been put in place and integrity
atturance offi cers trained.

xx
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9, STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Se<tion 83 of the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act, 2012, Section 14 of the State
Corporation', Act requirer the Directors to prepare financial rtatement, which give a true and
fair vianr of the rtate of affairs of the Corporation at the end of the financial year and the
operating resultJ of the corporation for the year. As the Directors of KICC we have ensured that
the corPoration keeps proper accouutint records which disclose with reasonable accurary the
financial Potition of the corporation and of the results of its operations. We are also responsible
for safeguarding the assetr of the Corporation and preparation of the corporation's financial
ttatementt, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Corporation a5 at the end
of the financial year 2022-2023 and of the result of iti operationi for the year then ended.
Our responsibility includes:
(i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangementJ and eniurint that theJe

continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;
(i0 Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of the entityi
(iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of the financial statements. and eniuring that they are free from
material misstatements. whether due to error or fraud:

(iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Corporation;
(v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
("i) Making accounting estimates that are rea5onable in the circumstances.

As Directors of KICC we accept responsibility for the Corporation's financial rtatements, which
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and ertimates, in conformity with lnternational Financial ReportinS Standards (lFRS),

and in the manner required by the section 83 of the PFM Act, 2Ol2 and the State Corporations
Act. We the Directors are of the opinion that KICC'5 financial ttatements give a true and fair view
of the Corporation's transactions during the financial year ended 30,h )une, 2022, and of the
Corporation's financial position as at that date. We further confirm the completeness of the
accountint records maintained for the Corporation, which have been relied upon in the
preparation of the financial rtatements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing har come to the attention as DirectoB to indicate that the Corporation will not remain a

going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this rtatement.

Approval of the financial rtatementj
The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre's Financial Statements have been prepared in

accordance with Section 83 ofthe PFM Act and were approved on 30 August, 2023.

,i,\ -->
"'l'i"""'*""""""""
Patricia Ondeng'
Ag. Chief Executive officer Director Corporate Service

'EPAK Member No. 14575

....,..,.:'.
CPA, C5 Jaines-Mwaura Hon. Adelina Mwau, ()CW

Chairperson
Board of Directors i^'
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

E n ho n c ing A <' <' ou n t u h i I i 4'

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL ON KENYATTA INTERNATIONAL
CONVENTION CENTRE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ad,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenyatta lntemational
Convention Centre set out on pages 1 to 29, which comprise of the statemenl of financial

Report ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Kenyqtta lnternational Convenrion Cenne for lhe year ended 30 June, 202 3



position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows, statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the yearthen ended,
in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the
Tourism Act, 2011 and the Public Finance Management Ac|2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lnaccuracies in the Comparative Figures

The statement of financial position reflects comparative amounts which differs with the
amounts reflected in the prior year audited statement of financial position as shown below:

Item

Financial
Statements

Comparative
Amount
(Kshs.)

Prior Year
Audited

Financial
Statements

Comparative
Amount
(Kshs.l

Variance
(Kshs.)

Trade Receivables 820,136,325 903,242,704 (83,106,379)
Retained Earnings 55,330,340 59,249,255 (3,918,915)
Trade and Other Payables 999,485,847 1,077.132.879 (77,U7,0321
Tax Payable 156.299.714 157.979.249 (1,679,53s)

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of comparative amounts could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Propefi, Plant and Equipment

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects property, plant and
equipment totalling Kshs.4,O13,298,206. The amount includes freehold land amounting
to Kshs.2,296,000,000 as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. As previously
reported, the freehold land amount excludes land commonly referred to as COMESA
parking area and the courtyard on which the first Kenya President's monument stands.

Further, a Restaurant has encroached on the land which has no title and is disputed
between the Centre and the County Govemment of Nairobi.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and ownership of the freehold land amounting to
Kshs.2,296,000,000 could not be confirmed

Repo of he Audilot-Generul on Keryatta Inlernational Corvenlion Cenlre for lhe year ended 30June,2023
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3. Unsupported lntangible Asset

The statement of financial position reflects intangible assets totalling Kshs.30,843,892 as
further disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. The amount includes Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) upgrade amounting to Kshs.30,000,000 which was not
supported.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of intangible asset totalling Kshs.30,843,892 could not
be confirmed.

4. Long Outstanding Staff Car Loans

The statement of financial position reflects staff receivables due after one (1) year totalling
Kshs.5,957,682 in respect of gross car loans and salary advance as disclosed in
Note 19(c) to the financial statements. The amount includes car loans due from former
employees amounting to Kshs.3,616,83'l which have been outstanding for more than
four (4) years.

Further, car loans and salary advances amounting to Kshs.665,240 have not been
disclosed.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of car loans and salary advance
totalling Kshs.5,957,682 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards
and Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenyatta lnternational Convention
Centre Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Long Outstanding Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables totalling
Kshs.750,371 ,568. The amount includes trade payables amounting to Kshs.153,805,053
as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. The trade payables amount includes
Kshs.103,484,409 which has been outstanding for over eleven years.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of financial statements. There were no key audit matters to report
in the year under review.

Report of the Audilor-Generol on Kerryatta International Cowenlion Centrefor the year ended 30 June, 202j
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Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance which have remained unresolved.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the procedures performed, I

confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public
resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the review so as to obtain limited
assurance as to whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in
the financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis of Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit so as to obtain limited assurance as to whether
effective processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

Report o/the Auditor-Ceneral on Kenyatla lnterndtional Convention Centefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and overall governar,ce.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Centre's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of intention to terminate the Centre or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 oI the Public Audit Act,
2015. ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible tor ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors
process, reviewing the
relevant legislative and
systems are in place to
and risk management,
environment.

are responsible for overseeing the Centre's financial reporting
effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governane,e
and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7\ ol the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenyalta International Convenlion Centrefor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

a

a

ll

a

a

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cenke's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Centre to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Centre to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scrpe and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Keryatta Internqtional Coneention Centre for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regading independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobl

14jlay,2021

Rqdt of thc Audlrdaenerul on Kcfildna Intqnotlotul Conventlon Ce*e for the yeo cnded i0 fine, 2023
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11. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3OTh JUNE 2023

DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Revenues
Cost of Sales

6ross Profit
Other lncome
Other lncome
Total Revenues
OPERATIN6 EXPENSES

Administration Costs
5elling and Distribution Costs
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses
Operating profit
ProflV Loss before Taxatlon
lncome Tax @ 30olo

ProfiV Loss after Taxation

2022-2023
3Oth June

2021-2022
3Oth JuneNOTE

10

IGhs Kshs

909,877,688 669.s33.8846
7 (487,624,s21 ) (76,802,027 )

422,253,167 592,731,857

435,480,684 7,O22.s32
8s7,733,851 599,754.389

12

13

lt

1.541,0s2,904
7,022.617

67,217,849

503.323.479
'1,821.839

59.064,535

14

1,61s,293,370
(7s7.559.519)
(7s7.ss9,s19)
227,267,856

564,209.8s3
35.544.535
35,544.535

(10,663.361 )
(s30,291,663 24,881,175)

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statementi form an integral
part of the financial statements. The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre'r Financial
Statements have been approved on. 30 Augun, 2O23.

-----\-
.,/

----i={|i;'/'
CPAiC'S James MwauraPdtricia Ondeng'

Ag. Chief Exeortive officer Director Corporate Service

ICPAK Member No. 14575

Hon. Adelina Mwau, OGW
Chairperson
Board of Directors



12,sTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A5 AT 3OTH JUNE 2023

Note 2022-2023 2021-2022

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

Staff receivables due after one year
Total Non{urrent fus€ts
Current Assets
lnventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Staff lmprests
Total Current fusets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Capital Fund
Retained earnings
Revaluation Reserve

Capital and Reserves
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax Payable
Total Current Llabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

15

r6
19c

17

18

21

19c

3oth June 2O23
Fshs

4.O13.298.206
30.843.892

5.957,682

30th June 2022
Kshs

5.O36.384.170
12.312.683
7.478.900

4,050.099.780 s.Os6.17s,753

7.173.776
946.328.252
128,138.697

2.049.704

3.835.5r 3

820.136.325
401.468.235

384.400
1,083,690,429 1.225,824,473
5,133,790,208 6,282,000,226

22
24
23

3.933.446.W
(616.497.543)
1,137.438.325

3,933.446.OOO
55.330.340

1,137,438.325
4,4il386.782 5,126,214,664

25
20

750.371.558
170.s68.r41)

999,485.847
156.299.714

679,403.426 r,rss,785,s61
5,133,790,208 6,282,000,226

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral
part of the financial statements. The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre's Financial

statements have been approved on, 30 Augurt. 2023

Patricia Ondeng'
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

P ames Mwaura
Director Corporate Services

ICPAK Member No 14575

Hon. Adelina Mwau, ocuu

Chairperson,

Board of Directors
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'TATEMENT 
OF CHANGE' IN EQUTTY & RESERVES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OIII JUNE 2023

Not
e

Shareholder'
Equity

Rewnue
ReJerves/Retalne

d Earnlnct

Revaluation
Reterve

Revenue
Reserver
Rertated

Total

Ksht Krht KJfu rGh, Krhi
At I July, 2Ol9 3l 3.933.446,@O (3s,840,738) | ,137 ,43A325 3,497.605,262 5,035,043,587
Net profit for the Year
ended 30th June 2O2O 37.391.6s2 37,391.652 37.391,652
Prior year adiurtment-
Work In P.oErelt
For the perlod ending
3oth June 2O20 3r 3,933,.145,00O r,s50.914 1,137,438.325 3.934,996.914 5.O72.415-239

Net proflt for the
Quarter ending 3oth
June 2021

28,898,251 28,898,25r 28.898.251

P.ior year ldrurmentl
For the period endlng
3oth June, 2O2l 3l 3.933.446.0OO 30.449,165 I,137,438.325 3.973.289.351 5,101.333,490
Net p.ofit for the
Quarter ended 3oth
)une 2022

2+.881,17 5 24,AA\17s 24.881,175

Prlor year adluiment,
For the period ended
3oth June, 2022

31 3,93 3,446,0OO 55,330,340 '| ,137 ,438,325 3,979,944.452 5,107,988,591

Net p.ofit for the year
ended 3Oth June 2023 (s30,29r.663) (530,29r,663) (s30,291.663)

Prior ye6. ldjuJmentt
For the perlod ended
3oth June. 2023 3l 3,933,.146, ooo (47 4,961 ,3241 1,137,438,325 3.449,652.7A9 4.577 .696.927

The accounting Policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of
the financial statements. The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre's Financial Statements have
been approved on,30 August. 2023

Pa cia Ondeng'
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

CPA, ames Mwaura
Director Corporate Services

ICPAK Member No 14575

Hon. Adelina Mwau, OGW
Chairperson,
Board of Directors

J



13. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AS AT 3OTH JUNE 2023

Note

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Tax paid
Net cash generated from/(used ln) operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Net cash generated from,/(used in) investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest income
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
INCREASV pECREASE) tN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

26 (213.389.358) 19.r67.981

(2r3.389.358) t9,r67,981

r5 (s9,e40,r80) (48,s96,261)
(59.940.180) (48.s96.261)

(27 3.329.538) (29.428.280)

&1,468235 430,896,s1s

128,138,697 401,468,235

The accounting policies and explanatory noter to these financial statements form an integral part
of the financial rtatements. The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre's Financial Statements

have been approved on. 30 August. 2023

As at 3lst June
2023

Kshs

As at 30th
June2022

Kshs

--:: "i- \

Patrlcia Ondeng'
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

CPA, CS James Mwaura
Director Corporate Services

ICPAK Member No 14575

Hon. Adelina Mwau, OGW
Chairperson

Board of Directors
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'TATEMENT 
OF COMPARISON OF EUDGET AND ACTUAL AA'IOUNTS AJ AT 3O'H JUNE 2023

DESCruPNON
A<tuak 2022-

2023(Al
2022-2023
Budga (B)

VARIANC E

c(A.B)
%

Varhfte

REMARKJ F.
(FAVORABLB U(UN.

FAVORABI.E)

\yHOLE YEAR,

EUDGET

NOTEJ TO
APIANATION OF

VAR.IANCEJ

K5H5 KJHS KJHS KJHS

Rent R€vPnue 3r0.896.979 253,670,554 57,226,425 23o/o F 253,670.554

Leared ParkinS Revenue 193,541,720 196.425,OOO (2.883.2801 -1o/o U 196.425.0O0

Confeaenae Revenue r8t.333.67r 234,695,U5 (53.362,17 4) -23 U 214.695.845

bCaterint 129,795.A13 t 48.960..16r (19,164.649) -r3% U 148.960.461

Equipment 94.309,504 149.896,147 6s.s46,6421 -37o/o U l49,A96,147

Carual Parkin8 Revenue 3.482.400 3.000.000 482,4@ 160h F 3.O@.OOO
a

Tower VlewinS Revenue 19,7182U r2,000.000 7,718,284 4 F | 2.000.ooo

Othe ourcer of revenue 280.000 2.0@.000 0.72o,0oo) -860lo U 2.OOO.000

Tourirm Fund-Re<urrent grant r 2.000.000 t 2.000.000 @/o

GoK Recurrent Srant .too.0@.000 400,000.000 Oe/o

Total Ra,enue 1,34535A372 1,0@,648,007 344.710,365 I .000.648.@7

ADMINI5TRATION CO'T5

Electri(ity 50.316.940 5t.600.000 (r,283.060) -20h F 5t,600,000
d

water & Conrervancy 15.183.444 15.200.0oo 06.556) @h F t5.200.000

PonaSe and Courier 9.450 rr2.5@ 003.050) -929o F ll2.5oo e

Telephone Expenret 1.942.350 3.060.000 (r.r17.650) .379o F 3.060.000
f

E-Mail & lnternet 1.468.540 2.442,@O (973.460) 4Ao/o U 2,442,OOO

Tranrport OperatinS Expentet 4,749,4o8 3.6@.000 t,t49.408 329. U 3.600.ooo
a

Travellint & Aa(ommodation 62.O41.234 5.3,ro,00o 56,701,234 lo620k U 5,3,lO.ooo

PrintinS, rtalione.y and pholoaopyinS 9.759.300 6.000.000 3.759.3@ 63 F 6.OOO.000 h

Staff tralninS expenret 25,416,113 25.0OO,000 416.lt3 2'lo F 25.000.000
I

Staff welfare & Uniform expenrer 32.606.706 2a,727,OOO 3,879,706 t40h F 24,727,OOO

Burine$ Promotion Expenrer(Entertainmen0 2.925,978 750.000 2,175,978 29@/o U 750.OOO ,

General lnturan<e 15.236.507 15.487.772 (251.26s1 -2qo 15,487,772

Bank chatgeJ and (ommittion, 1.373,157 1.180.000 193.157 160/0 F r.t80.o00 k

Memberhip to profetrional Miet 499.518 s,004,230 (4,504,712) -90% F 5,OO4,230

Conrultancy feer 195.947,871 13.268.680 182,679,191 1377 F 13.268.680
m

Legal feer. Land rater.ti(entet & sub(ription, 76,955,480 24.438,912 52,516,568 215 F 24.438,912
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Repairr and maintenan<e 174,404.245 34.050.OOO 340.354.245 tooo 34.050,000 n

Board Expenret 3,323,667 25.33r.000 (22,OO7,333) -879o F 25.33r.@0

874,t59.908 260.592,094 613,567,814 2@,592,O94

OTHER OPERATING D(PENsE5

Contracted tervicet 73.150,359 82.300.000 (9.r49.64r) -ll% F 82.3@.000 P

Conrumable Storet 3.754,411 6.50o.ooo (2.74s.589) 420/. F 6.5@.000

qRerearch and development 1r.500,000 0r,50o.0oo) -loo F I t.5oo.ooo

6ift ,hop ff/o F

Corporate to<lal Rerpotuibllity/lnvenment 1.500.00o 0,50o.0oo) -r0096 F 1.500.0@

76.904.770 10t,8@.mo (24,89s,2101 101,8@,000

9TAFF COST'(PERJONNEL EMOLUMENTS)

talarier Wa8e, & Leave Allowance soa.2a6.@4 280,9@.912 227.376,182 8tq6 t 280.909,911

Medi.al lnruran(e 37,544.190 40.000.000 (2.455.810) -6P/n 40.000,000

Carual wager 693.O77 693.077 Oo/o U

6ratuity & Pention 9 32A,s82 21.613.520 02,2a4.938) -57 F 21.613,520

555,851,943 342,523,432 213,328,511 342,523,431

SETXNG & DISTRIBUTION CO'T

Third party cottr 431.357.782 110.221.975 32r.r35.807 291 U 11o,221.975 r

MICE & Particlpallon in Exhlbltlon 56,266.739 40.000.ooo 16,266,739 41 U 20.000.000 t

Production of Promotion Material, 5,769.648 r 1.500.000 15.730,352) -50oh F I I.500,000
t

AdvertitinS & Publi.ity 1,252,969 r 3.600,0oo 112,347.O31) -910h F r3.6@.000

Provirion for Depreciation 67.217,449 60.000.000 7.217.449 120/6 F 50.000,0oo

Provirion for Audii fee, 2.463,999 600.000 1.863.999 311o/o U

Provilion for Provition for debt, 29,267,8U 29.267,4U @h

Repla(ement & Renewal ltem, 2,404.400 31.800.000 (29.39s.@o) -920h U 31,800,o0o

596,@1,270 267,721,975 32A,279,295 247.121,975

Total Expenret 2,102,917 ,491 972,637,501 I,130,280,390 9s2,O37,500

Re-Current ,urplut o s7 .5s9,stgl 28,01O.507 - 785.570,U6 -2805 48.6t0,507

6



Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre Financial Statements for the year ended 3Oth June 2O23

I5. EXPIANATION OF THE VARIANCES

a) Rent revenue

The favourable variances during the year was achieved by short term leases and timely
billing and collection of revenue during the year.

b) Conference, catering and equipment revenue

During the year corporation did not meet the target for the above revenue due to fact

few events were held during the year. This lead to under achievement

c) Casual parking and Tower viewing revenue
During the year there was increased in vehicles parked daily this lead increase in casual

parking revenue. Helipad also received a lot visits, this lead to significant increase in
revenue.

d) Electricity, Water & Conservanry

Consumption of electricity significantly reduced due to utilization of solar panel installed
this led to a favourable variance of Kshs. 8,999,254. Water and conservancy on the other
hand had favourable variance of Kshs 15,556 this is due to high sewerage charges.

e) Postage and courier
During the year the corporation opted to use email and internet services for it
communication. This led to favourable variance of Kshs. 103,050 against a budget of
Kshs. 112.50O

f) Telephone expente, E-mail and lnternet
During the year telephone expenres decline and there was a favourable variance of Kshs.

1,117,650. Email and internet expenses during year was Kshs. 1,468,540 against a budget
of Kshs 2.442.000, there was higher utilization of internet services.

g) Travelling and accommodation.
The travelling accommodation had unfavourable variance of Kshs 56,701,234. This
resulted from some of the staff travelling for various trainings during the year.

h) Printing, rtationery and photocopying
Since the corporation opted to leasing printing and photocopying services. it resulted to a

unfavourable variance of Kshs, 3,629,633 during the year.

i) Staff training expenses and Staff welfare & uniform expenses

During the period staff training was budgeted Kshs. 25,000,000.00 against actual

expenditure of Kshs 23,152,393.00 this led to favourable variance Kshs. I,837,507.00.
Staff welfare & uniform expenses had a favourable variance of Kshs. 1,122,445.00.
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j) Busines promotion expenses (Entertainment)

During the year the corporation held several business promotion meeting this led to an

actual expenditure of Kshs 2,925,978 against a budget of Kshs 750,000.00

k) Bank Charges and Commission
The above vote head was budgeted Kshs.1.180.000.00 the actual expenditure was

Kshs. 1,373,157.00 this resulted to favourable variance of Kshs. 193,157.00 due to
reduced number of bank transactions in and out of our bank accounts.

l) Membership to professional bodies

During the year corporation spent Kshs. 499,518 on subscription to various professional

bodies for both staff and corporate. There was a favourable variance of
Kshs. 4,504,712.00.

m) Consultanry fees and Legal fees, land rates licenses & subicriptions
ln the year under review there was an expenditure of Kshs. 1.064,800.00 on consultancy
service this resulted into a favourable variance of Kshs 12,2O3,880.OO. There was

favourable variance of Kshs 15,392,918.00 on legal fees. Land rates, Licenses and

5ubscriptions.

n) Repairs and maintenance
During the year there were no major repairs and maintenance in the corporation this

resulted in favourable variance of Kshs 23,057,731.00.

o) Board expenses

During the year there was no board in place this led to an expenditure of
Kshs. 3,352,581.00 against a budget of Kshs.25,331.0O0.0O during the year. This resulted

to favourable variance of Kshs. 21,978.419.00.

p) Contracted services

The above vote head was budgeted Kshs. 82,300,000.00 the actual expenditure was

Kshs. 73.150,359.O0 this resulted to favourable variance of Kshs. 9,149,641.OO.

q) Consumables stores, Research and development, 6ift shop and Corporate social

responsibility

There was an expenditure of Kshs. 3,7 54,411.OO against a budget of Kshs. 6,500,000.00
this lead to favourable variance Kshs.2,745,589.00 on consumables vote heads during
the year. There were no expenditure on research and development which had an

allocation of Kshs. 11,500,000.00 and Corporate social responsibility which had a budget

of Kshs. 1,500,000.00.
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r) Third party costt
This are costs directly relating to event/conferencing activities, during the year
corporation endeavoured in providing equipment's during conferences and exhibition this
led to an actual cost of Kshs. 142,212,550 against a of budget Kshs. 110,221,975. There
was favourable variance of Kshs. 3'l,990,575.00.

, MICE & Participation in Exhibition and Production of Promotion Materials
There were two international exhibitions and several local exhibition held during the year
this led to an expenditure of Kshs. 56,266,739.00 against a budget of Kshs 40,000,000.
There was an expenditure of Fshs. 5,769,648.00 on production of promotion materials
during the year leading to a favourable variance of Kshs. 5,730,352.00

t) Replacement and rens/yals
During the year there were no major renewals and replacement this led to an expenditure
of Kshs. 2,4O4,4OO against a budget of Kshs. 31,80O,O00.O0.
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I6. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. CENERAL INFORMATION
KICC is a State Corporation establirhed under the Tourism Act, 2011.

2. SUMMARY OF SI6NIFICANT ACCOUNTIN6 POLICIES

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

a. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment.
marketable securities and financial instrumenti at fair value. impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational Financial

Reporting Standards (lFR5) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. lt also requires

management to exercise iudgement in the process of applying the Corporation's
accounting policies.

The finahtial rtatements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Corporation and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (Kshs'OOO).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act, and lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

IFRS 13,'Fair value measurement', aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across lFRSs. The requirements, which are largely
aligned between lFRSs and US 6AAP, do not extend the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within lFRSs.

IAS 19,'Employee benefits', was amended in June 2012. The impact on the Company will
be as follows: to immediately recognize all past service costs; and to replace intere5t cost

and expected return on plan arsets with a net interest amount that is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
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17. SUMMARY OF SI6NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Amendments to IAS 36, 'lmpairment of assets', on the recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of CGUs which had been included in IAS 36 by the issue of |FRS 13. The
amendment is not mandatory for the company until I January 20.I4.

IFRS 12,'Disclosure of interest in other entities'- includes the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interest in other entitier, including intereit in subsidiaries, associates, joint
arrangementr, special purpose entities and other off-balance sheet vehicles.

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and not early adopted by the Corporation.
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after I January 2013, and have not been applied in preparing
these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the
financial itatements of the company, except the following set out below:
lFRS 9. 'Financial instruments', addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October
2010. lt replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurements categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
entity's business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the
Standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where
the fair value change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement. unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The
6roup is yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact.

IFRS 15. 'Revenue recognition' (effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2Ol8 and early adoption is permitted). Final standard issued on 28th May 2Ol4 proposed

a five-step approach:
l. ldentity contract - new definitions and additional guidance on contract combination
and modification.
2. Separate performance obligation - Performance obligation is accounted for separately
if it is 'distinct'; a good/ service is dininct if the curtomer can benefit from the good/ service

on its own and it i5 not highly dependent on or interrelated with other promised goods/
services in the contract-
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SUMMARY OF SI6NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3. Determine transaction price - variable consideration based on probability weighted
or most likely amount but is constrained up to the amount that is probable of no
significant reversal in the future: reflect time value when significant: credit risk as an

expense in separate line on face and measured based on IFRS 9/lAS 39;
4. Allocate transaction price - Based on a relative selling price basis; "residual approach"
only used when there is performance obligation with stand-alone price which is highly
variable or uncertain.
5. Recognize revenue - Model now based on control, but risk and rewards remain an

indicator: criteria for satisfied over time introduced.
b) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Corporation and the revenue can be reliably mea5ured. Revenue is recognised

at the fair value of consideration received or expected to be received in the ordinary
course of the Corporation ', activities, net of value-added tax (VAT), where applicable, and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Corporation'r activities as described
below.
i) Revenue from the sale of goods and services are recognised in the year in which the
entity delivers services to the customer, the customer has accepted the services and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. The key revenue streamr
include conference activities, rent income, leased and casual parking, tower viewing and
third-party revenue.
ii) Grants from National Government are recognised in the year in which the
Corporation actually receives such grants and its respective expenditure done.
iii) Finance income comprises interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in
Fixed Deposit Reserves (FDRs), and is recognised in profit or loss on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest rate method.
iv) Rental income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues using the effective
lease agreements.

v) Other income is recognised as it accrues.

c) Property, plant and equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued
amounts. being their fair value at the date of re-evaluation less any subsequent

accumulated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Depreciation and impairment losser. Where re-measurement at re-valued amounts is

desired, all items in an asset category are re-valued through periodic valuations carried out
by independent external valuers.

lncreases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of
the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are

charged to profit or loss in the income statement.
6ains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and
are recognised in profit or loss in the income statement.
d) Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress

relates mainly to the cost of on-going but incomplete works on buildings and other civil
works and installations.

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is recognised in the income statement on a
reducing balance basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use are:
Class of Asset

Freehold Land O.Oo/o

Buildings and civil works 2.5 o/o

Furniture 12.5 o/o

Others (Tools, Fire extinguishers, Laptop chains) 12.5 o/o

Carpets 12.5 o/o

Offi<e equipment 3O.Q o/o

Motor Vehicles 25.O o/o

CCTV Cameras 30.0 o/o

Software's 33.3 o/o

Plant and Equipment 12.5 o/o

Communication Equipment 12.5 o/o

A full year's depreciation charge is recognised both in the year of asset purchase and in the
year of asset disposal.

e) Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an alset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an
lmpairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount.
f) lntangible asets
lntangible alsets comprise purchased computer software licences, which are capitalised on
the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful life of the intangible assetr from the year that they are
available for use, usually over three years.
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d Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
computer software of three years.

All computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying amount of
an intangible a5ret is assessed as greater than its eitimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount.
h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at fair values less allowances for any
uncollectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amountr at
the year end. ln the year under review a 3 o/o general provision has been made on total
debtors. Bad debts are written off after all efforts of recovery have been exhausted and
write off approved by Public investment committee of parliament..
i) Taxation
Current income tax assets and liabilitie, for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are thore that are enacted or substantially enacted as

at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is

recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
fi nancial reporting purposes.
j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investmenti with an original maturity of three monthr or less, which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of
Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes

of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash

imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were not
surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

k) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost, which
is measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future
in respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the corporation or not. less any
payments made to the suppliers.
l) Retirement benefit obligations
The entity operates a defined contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July I,
2013. The scheme is administered by Jubilee lnsurance and is funded by contributions from
both the company and its employees. The company also contributes to the statutory
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National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined contribution scheme registered
under the National Social Security Act. The company's
Obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time
and is currently at Kshs.200 per employee per month.
m) Provision for staff leave pay

Employeei entitlements to annual leave are recognised ar they accrue at the employees. At
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.
n) Exchange rate differences
The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Corporation operates. Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign
currencies during the year/period are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dater of the traniactions or valuation where items are re-

measured. Any foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

o) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.
p) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact
on the financial statements for the year ended 30rh June 2021.

d Provision for employee entitlement-Staff leave pay

Employee entitlement to annual leave are recognised and paid immediately within
the financial year when they accrue.

Certain employees of the Corporation are entitled to rervice gratuity based on resignation
or termination of employment based on 31o/o of their basic pay for the period of time
worked for. The service gratuity is provided for in the financial statements as it accrues to
each employee.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUD6EMENT5
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including experience of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Corporation makes estimates and assumption concerning the future. The resulting
accountinB estimates will by definition, seldom equal to related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of cauring a material adiustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitieJ within the next financial year are addressed

below.
lncome taxes

The Corporation is subject to various income taxes. Significant judgement is required in
determining the Corporation's provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The group recognizes liabilities or anticipated tax audit issues based on
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estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these

matters is different from the amounts that were initially record. such differences will impact

the income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Gratuity scheme obligations
The present value of the gratuity obligations depends on a number of factors that are

determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for gratuity include the discount rate and future salary

increases. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of gratuity
obligations.

The Corporation relies on an independent actuary to determine the appropriate discount

rate at the end of the year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of e5timate future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension

obligations.
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANACEMENT
The corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and

liquidity risks and the effects of changes in foreign currency rates. The corporation's overall
risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the operating
environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its

performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

i) Foreign exchange risk

ii) The corporation receives payments from clients and makes payments in U5

Dollars. The corporation is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising primarily
with respect to the US dollar transactions.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactioni, recognized income, assets

and liabilities.
iii) lnterest rate risk

The corporation is exposed to interest rate risk as it holds short term bank deposits at fixed
interest rates.

iv) Price risk

The corporation does not hold investments that would be subject to price risk hence this

risk is not relevant
v) Credit risk

The corporation's credit risk is primarily attributable to itJ trade receivables.

vi) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors

through the senior management of the corporation. Management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the corporation's short,

medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The corporation
manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities through continuous monitoring of
forecast and actual cash flows.

a
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.IOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVENUE
Conference

Rent

LeaJed Parking
CaterinS

Equipment

COST OF SALES

Third party outsourcing
MICE &. Participatlon in exhibitions

GMNTS FROM NA11ONAL GOVERNMENT

Recurrent grant recelved (Deffered lncome)

The amounl received from the Minirtry of Tourkm and Wildlife recognised
as deffered income

l0 Other lncome
Casual Parking
Tower viewinS
Other sources

Tourism Fund-Recurrent

GoK grant-Recurrent

tl Depreclatlon and Amortlzatlon
Euildings &. civil works
Furniture & FittingJ
Offlce equlpment
Motor vehicle
Plant & equipment
Communlcatlon Equlpment
Amortizatlon of lntantible AJJets

Prior year adiurtment (lntangible Asret)

12 ADMINISTRATIONCOSTS
Staff costs (note l2b)
Directors emoluments
Electrlcity and water

Communicalion services and rupplies(Postate,Telephone,Email&lnternet)

Transportation, travelllnS and Jubrlrtenceoranrport operating
expenses,Travelling & Accomodatlon.)

Printing, stationery and photocopylng
staff traininS expenres

Aaual Un-
Audlted 2022-

2023

Acturl Audlted
2021-2022

6

18t,333.671
31o,896,979
193,541,720
129,795,813
94,309,504

|3,127,675
299,1O2.O75
187,458,973

30.159,041
39,686,121

909,877,688 669.533,884
7

431,357.782
56.266.7 39

44,331,824
32.470,203

487,624,521 76,802,027

8

400,000,000
40o,000,000

3.482,4o0
19,7ls,284

280,000
12,000,000

400,000,000

1,598.348
5,300.074

24.11O

435,$O,684 7,022.532

41,737,783
2,713,403
2,443,5o2
4.932,500

379,688
2,268,726
3.618,79t
9,123,456

67 217,849

555.851.943
3.323.667

65,500.384

231,899,632
5,O95.352

54,385.208

3,420,340 2,606,176

66,790.642 32,444,A14

9.629,633
15.772,307

t'7

9,759,300
25,416.t |3
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HoJpitality supplies and services(Entertainment& Staff Welfare) 35,532,684 22,7O5.O7O a
lnsurance costs(general)

Bank charges and commissions
Auditors'fees
ConJultancy fees

Legal fees. licence & ratej
Repairs and maintenance

Other operating expenrer(Csl,Mship to Prof bodier,Contracted
Services,Consumables,R&D,Replacement and renewal5)

Provision for bad debts

15,236,507
1,37 3.157

2,463,999
195.947.871

76,955,480
374,44,245

13,942,170
9lo,ool

r,2r54,000
r.39r.140

4,578,122
r7,855,030

I2b Staff Costs

5alarler and allowances of permanent employees
6ratuity, Pention and Retirement Benefitt
Medical expenJeJ

Casual

The average number of employees at lhe end of the year was:

Permanent employee, - Management

I3 SELLING AND DIsTRIBUTION COST5

Advertiring and publicity
Production of promotional material,

t4 lNcoME TAX EXPENSV(CREDTT)
(a) Current taxation

Current taxation based on the adiu5ted profit for the year at 30Vo

17 INVENTORIES

Technical ltems
Housekeeping ltems
ICT items
Stationery ltems
Promotional ltem,
Consumables
Security ltemt

I8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

79,808.688 63.228.783

29267,884 25,365,O41

1,541,052,904 503,323,479

508,286,O94
9.328.582

37,544,190
693,O77

555.A51.943 231,899,632

135

135

128

128

t,252,969
5,769,648

7,022.617 r.82r.839

(227.267,556) r0,653,36r

(227 267,856) 10,563,36r

r 81.806.293
l0,o96,oll

39,997,328

697.759
1.124.o80

287.780
282341

3.612,770
1,220,195

1.765,r50
4.500

793.485
I,428,1O0

380,832
818,t94
201.830
213.O72

7,173,776 3,835,513

946.328.252 A20.t36.325Net trade receivableJ (note l9a)

l8



Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre Financial Statements for the year ended 3oth June 2O23

DepotitJ and prepaym€nts

Grott trade and other receivables

I9a TMDE RECEIVABLEJ

Trade receivables
General provision for Bad Debts

Net trade Receivables

l9c STAFF RECEIVABLET

6rori car loans & salary advance
staff lmprest

20 CORPORATION TAX TIABIUTV
At beginnin8 of the year

lncome tax charge for the year

lncome tax paid durint lhe year

At end of the Year

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT'
BANK AND CASH BALANCES

BANK & BRANCH

Kenya Commerclal Bank - KICC-Operations
Kenya Commercial Bank - KICC-Development

Kenya Commercial Bank - KICC-USD.558,995.84

Co-operative Bank - CIryHAlL-Operationt
Petty Carh
MPESA Control ACC

TOTAT CASH AND CA5H EQUIVALENTS

lThe bulk of the cath al bank was held at Cooperative Eank of Kenya and
Kenya Commercial Rank, the Corporation't main banken.J

22 CAPITAL FUND
Work in protrets lnvertment (Refurbithment of Travo and Rehabilitation of
Fountain)

Capltal contributlon

The Corporatlon it a parattatl wholly(loo%) owned by Govemment of
Kenya,the Capital Reserve includet the oritinal valuation of the Corpration
and tubtequent grantt received from the Goverment,

23 RryALUATION RESERVE

Surplut on Revaluation of Property Plant & Equipment(PPE)

24 RETAINED EARNINGS

946,328,252 820.136.325

975,596,136
(29,267,8841

845.50r.366
(25,365,O4r)

946,328252 820.136.325

5,957,682
2,O49,704

156,299,714
(227 267,8s61

7.478,900
384.400

145,636,354
r0,663,36r

(70.968.14r) 1s6,299,714

33,241,896
3.707,447

78,259,418

12.929.936

20,532.834
1,912,010

t6:247,951

362.775,441

128.138,697 401.468.23s

3,933.446,OO0 3,933,446,000
3,933,446,000 3,933,/H6,000

1,137,4?8,325 1.137.438.325

1,137.438,325',t,t37.438.325

The rctained earnintt represenl amountt
Corpora I i on' t butl n e t t d c t i vit ie t,

At the beginninS of the year

Net Profit for the year

Prior year adiustment (Custom duty)

55,330,340
(53O,29r,563)
(80,00o,000)

30,449,165
24,a81,17 5

utilited to linance lhe

r9



Renvatta International Con\/ention Centre Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

Prior year adjustment (PendinS bill not verified)

At the close of the year

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLEs

Trade payables

Provisionr for WTO pending bills
Provisional for court yard renovation phare I

VAT Uability
lncome tax charte for the quarter
Other Payabler-Depoiits & PrepaymentJ
ProviJionJ for Upgrade Of ERP ry(em
ProviiionJ for gratuity
ProvisionJ 5alary Review
Provision for legal contigency
Accrued expenser

Deffered Income (note 8)

26 NOTES TO THE 
'TATEMENT 

OF CASHFLOWS

(a) Reconcillation of operating profit/ (loss) to Cash tenerated from/ (used
in) operations
Operating profit/ (loss)

Depreciation and amortizatlon
Prior year adiustment on WIP

Operating proflv (loJJ) before worklng crpltal changer

(lncrease)/decrease in lnventorlet
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivablet

lncrease/ (decreare) in trade and other payablet

lncrease/ (decrease) in Jtaff advances and loans

Cash generated from/ (used ln) operationt
(b) Analysis of caJh and cash equivalents
Cash at bank

Balsnce at end of the year

27 REIATED PARTY TRANSACTION' DISCLOSURES

The Corporation is wholly owned and controlled by the Governmenl of
Kenya thrcugh the Minittry of Touritm: there arc no other companiet
which are related lo the Cotporation,
The following transactlon5 were carried out with related parties:

i) Key management compeniatlon
Salariet and other rhort-term employment benefits

ii) Directorr' remuneratlon

The Board of Directorr remuneration for la5t twelve (12) montht

(iil) Employees

The Corporation providet certain qualifying employeet with car loant on
termt more favourable than available in the markeL The benefit obtained
by ttaff it tubjecled to income tax at required under the Kenya lncome Tax
Act.

(51,535,2r9)

(616,497,54?) ss,33O,34O
a

r53.805.O53
83,908.475
52,4r,665
31.296,960

22.150.000
15,784,O73

308.502,480
67,9@,486
14.603,376

338.197.526
r 09.643.534

52.411,665
76.453.OO3

10.096.0r r

12.67 4.1O8

400,oo0,000
750.371.568 999,485,847

(7 s7 ,5s9 ,519t
67.217.849

857,117,999

35,544,53s
59,064,535

166,776,329 94,609,O71

(3.338.263)

(126,191 ,927\
(249.fi4279t

(r,521,2r 8)
(213,389,358)

(2.277.11s)

(394.O5r )

(7 3 ,s82,O66r,

812,143

t9.t67.981

128.138.697 401.468.235

129,138,697 401.468.235

t00,000,000

555,85t.943 231,899,632

3,352,581 5,O95,352

135t35
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Irerryatta rrrrernationar Convemion Lenrre Financial Statements lor the year enoeo 30lh June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS (PPE)
Capltal wort

ln Dro$ert
TotalCommuni@tion

Equlpment
Motor
vehLlc

Plant &
€qulpment

Eulldln$ &
dvll wortJ

Fumlturc &
Fltdng,

Om.e
equlpmentFrcehold landDETAII.5

XJHSKJH' t(sHSKSHS KJHS KJHSXJHS xsHst<sHs

CO9T OR VALUATION
1.033.111,3,14 4.031.529.921r3.0t5,000 33.980.625 166,647,QO10a.558,625 14.165,000I .000,0@.000 1 .662.051 .927At July, 2Ot9 (Con)

Additionr
u.231.t40 1.n3.722.329(31 ,2s8.1251 (149.O15.46s\(7.79r.r60) 6.715.0@2,744.O73 (87 ,9O7 .134t1.296.000.0@Capital Revaluatlon Rererve

1.117 .342.444 5,145,252,2502,722s@ 17.631,9356,373,84 r9.730,0001,564,8@,000 20,651,4912,296.000,0@At 3Oh June 2020 at Valuatlon

DEPRECIATION

At July 2019
53,588,6483,1O.313 2.203.4672.580.213 1.912.155 4.932.5004r.620.000Charge for the Year

Prlor vear adiuttment
53,588,642,203,4574,932.sN 3.1O.3134t,620,0@ 2,580,213 l.9tel55At 30th J'rne 2020

1,117,342,M 5.t45 252.2502,722,5@ 17,631,9356,373,84 r9,730.0@I ,664.800,000 20.651,4912.296,000,000At July, 2019 at Valuadon
5,@1,553,@2|,\7342,4423a2,t47 15,42A.46818,o71,278 4,46i.,645 14,797,5@2,296,000,000 t,623,180,000At 30th June 2020

|,|7 ,142,444 5,091,663,60223A2,147 't5,428,46414,O71,274 4.46I.645 14,797,5@2,294O@.@O t.623.180.O@Eal6nce tu at 3oth ftpt.mber 2020

DEPR,ECIATION
At tept 2020

13,507,705555,5271,243,260 85.777650.651 481.96910.490.52tDepredation for thc quarter endint 3Oh JePt
2020

67,096,353426,@O 2,758,9942,3 ,124 6,175,76052,110,521 3,210.464&<umulat.d D€p at rt 30th SrPt 2O2O

5.145.252,25017,631,935 1,117 .342.48419,730,000 2,722,5@20,651,491 6,373,842,296,000.000 1,654,800.0@At July, 2019 at Valuation
5.O7A.155.89714,872,941 1.117 .342.48413,554,24 2,296,41O1,612.6A9,479 17,420,627 3,979,n52.296.000.0@Net book value a, at 3oth Sept 2020

5.O7A.155.a972.295,410 14.872,941 1,117 ,342,4843,979,n6 13,554,2401 ,612,649,479 17,420,6272,295,000,moBrlafte tu 6t 3Oh September 2020

7a7,O3A148.000639.038Addftionalr
Tranrfer from wlP-Prior year adiunment
DEPRECIATION
Ar at 3ln D€c 2020

13.507,705555,5271.243,260 45,777550.55t 481.969to.490,521Depreciation tor the quarler endlnt 3ltt Dea

2020
80,604.0593,314,5217,419,021 51t,8683,88rJr5 2,876,@362,60t,041A.ormul.ted O€p aJ .t 3ltt De< 2020

5,065,435.22914,317.414 1 ,117 ,X42.48412,31o,979 2,210,61217,M,O14 3,645,7472,296,000,000 r,602,t98,959NET BOOKVALUE AJ AT 3IST DEC 2O2O

935.0@935.000Addilional,

I

-
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Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre Flnancial Statementr for the year ended 30lh )une 2O2?

TranrJer from wlP-Prior tad
DEPRTC|ATION
tu at 3ln March 2021

Depre(lallon for thc quarter endint 3ltt Mar
2021

10.262,466 636.492 9.1,615 1.216-233 83.913 547.95t 13,288.669

A.cumulated D€p ar .t 3ln Ms(h 2021 72,863,507 4.5t8,007 3,417,70a a,635,253 595,78t 3,A62,472 93,A92,72A

N ET BOOK VALUE AS AT 3lST M6r 2020 2.296.W,W 1,591,936,493 16,772.522 4,O39.132 11,@4,747 2,126.719 13,769,463 1,117 ,342,444 5.053.081.560

Additionalt 3 .460,824.OO 3.460,428

Tran!trer from WIP-Prior year .druttment

DEPRrcI,ATION
Ar at 3oth June 2021

Depreclatlon for the quarter endint 3oth June

2021
10.463.0t4 643.612.64 554.O33 1,229.747 u.845 554.O31 13,529,285

A.cumulated Dep ar at 3Oh June 2021 83.326,521 5,161,620 3.971,742 9.865.000 680.626 4,416,505 107.422,013

NET BOOKVALUE A5 AT 3Oh JUNE 2O2I 2,296.0@.0@ 1 ,5a4,934,307 16.128.909 3.,+85.098 9,865,000 2,o4.l,874 13,215,430 l,i7 ,342.444 5.043.0r3,102

Additionalt
Tranrfer from u/lP-hor year adiunment

DEPRECIATION
Ar at 3Oh Sept 2o2l
D€pre<iation for the quarte. endinS 30th SePt

2021
to.490.521 650.651.10 481.969 1.243,250 85.777 560,125 13.512,303

Accumul.ted Dep at at Soth Jun.202 I 93,a17,U2 s,812271 4,453,711 11.108.260 766,403 4,976,630 120,914.317

NET BOoKVALUE AS AT 3oh Sept 2O2l 2,296,000.0@ 1 .574.443.756 15,478,258 3,@3,129 a,621,74 1,956,097 12.655.305 1 ,117 ,342,484 5,O28,215,046

Additional, 9t.379

Tranrfer from wlP.Prlor ye.r

DEPRECIATION
Ai rt 30th Sept 2O2l

Depre<iation fior the quarler erdinS 3ln D€<

2021
t0.490.521 650.65r.10 441,969 1.243.260 45.777 564,172 13.5t6,350

A.ormuLted D€p rr et 3ltt Oe<€mber 2021 t&,307,562 6,462,922 4,935.640 12.35t,521 852.180 5,5Q,4O2 134,450,667

NET BOOKVALUE Ai AT 3ln De.202l 2,296.000,000 | .563.953,266 w,a27,&7 2,521.1@ 7 374,479 1,870.320 12,1a2,512 1,117,342,444 5,014.694,696

Additionale
Tranrfer from wlP-Prlor year adiunment

DEPN,ECIATION
A at 3l( Merrh 2022
Depre€iation for the quarter endint 3l( Ma.d
2022

10.262,466 636.491.75 471.490 1,216.233 83.913 559,414 13,230,007

Acohulnted D€p at at 3ln March 2022 114.570,O24 7,W9.414 5.407,170 13,567,753 936,O9) 6,1m,216 &7.6A0,674

NET BOOKVALUE AJ AT 3IN M6T.h 2022 2,296,000,000 t,553,690,800 l4.l9l.ll5 2,U9,670 6,162,247 1,7 ,407 .623.098 1 ,fl7 ,342,444 5.001.458.689

Additlonalt 48,596.26r.00 4A,596,261

Tranrfer from wlP-Prior year adiuttment
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DEPRECIATION
tu et 3ln Manh 2022
Depreaiation for the quarter endiry 3Oh June

2022
10.680.220 643.612.68 476.731 1.229.747 a4.845 565.623 13,6A0.779

Accumulated ar at 3oth June 2022 12s250,248 7,743,026 5,883.901 14.797,5@ r,020,938 6,665,8Q 161,361,453

NET BOOKVALUE Ai AT 3Oh June 2022 2.296.0@.0@ 1.591.606.841 13, 7,503 1.572,939 4,932,5@ 1,701,562 1t,o57,475 1 ,117 ,342.4U 5,0363a4,170

Additionalr 5.362.680.00 5.t62.640

Tranrfer from WIP-Prior ment

D EPREC IATIO N

tu at 3oth Sept 2022
Depre(iation for the quarter endint 3oth ,ept
2022

10,557.ss4 650.551 44l.969 1.243.260 45,777 571.842 r3.59t,054

Aacumulated Dep ar at 30th Sept 2022 135,807,802 8,393,677 6365,A70 16,04O,760 L106,716 7,237,642 174.952,508

NET BOOKVALUE Ai AT 3oth Sept 2022 2,296,000,000 1,586,41t,967 12,896.851 1.090,970 3.6A9,240 1.615,784 10,485,632 1,117 .342,484 5.O2A.155.796

Additionalr 8.120.000.00 I,120,000

Tranrfer from \YlP-Prior yea r adiurlrnent

DEPRECIATION

tu at 3ln De( 2022
Depre<iation for the quarter endinS 3ln De(
2022

to.54t ,270.55 650.U4.62 481,969 ).243,260 45.777 571,84? 13,574.769

Aaaumulated Dep ar at 3Oh Sept 2022 146,349,O73 9,M4,322 6,847,819 17,2A4,O21 1.192,493 7.8@,529 1aa.527,276

NET EOOKVALUE A5 AT 3ltt Dec 2022 2,296.@0.0@ 1,59t,840.696 12,246,207 609.0ol 2.445.979 1.530,@7 9,913,7A6 |,117 ,342.444 5.022.7 01 ,O28

Additional,
Tranrfer from WIP-Prior tad

DEPREC IATIO N

Ar rt 3ln Mard 2023
Depre(iation for the quarter endint 3ln Mar(h
2023

10,262,465.7 6 636.492 441969 t.216.233 83.913 559.414 13,240,446

Acomulated Dep at at 3ln March 2023 156.61t,538 9,680,814 7,329,808 t8,500,253 1.276,406 8,368,943 201,767,762

NET EOOKVALUE A5 AT 3ln Mar.h 2023 2,296,000,000 1 ,581,57 8,230 11,609.71s 127,O32 1,229,747 1.445.094 9,354,372 1 ,117 ,342,484 5,01A,6a7,674

wlP (Refurblrhment of Travo and Rehabilitation
of tountain)
U of ERP

Additionalt 4.850.000 ro.498.000 l.t 09.500 16,457,500

Tranrfer from wlP-Prior
Erroneour Repair, and maintenanae inaluded aJ

wtP
(363.411.97 6) (363,4 ,976)

Erroneou, printint and Stationery included at
wtP

(7,424.O@t 17,424.ffi')

E.oneou, Third Party exp€nret intluded at u4P (291 .398,952]
094,883.07r)

(9.123.456)

(80.000.00o)

(291,398,952)

Eroneout Conrultancy exp€ nrer in(luded ar WIP 094,883.070

Eroneort irKlurion of paynent for ERP t)4t€m
included a, WIP

(9,123.456)

Eronaou, inclurion of payment for KRA included
(80.000,000)

23
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ar wlP
Ergncoor inch.rbn of pcrldlnt Hll nor \rcriffcd
lnclud€d aJ wlP

(6r.535,219) (61,536rr9)

Prlor ,imcali on airatt 57.131,942 6.813,7@ r260.000 (65.2Os,702l

DFRECI^TpN
& rt 3Oi Jun 2@3

fo. dr. 3 2023 10.376,493.16 n5,616 997,595 1.229.745 t21,220 565.623 14.069294

A.ollnuhd Dcp !r d 3|n lvtlrdr 2023 2:t1,\9,974 t7 27o,t8e 4327,Q3 t9,730,0(x) t,&,626 a,9*,56 2Tr.782.754

NET BOOK VNUE AJ AT 3oth Junc 2023 2.295.m.0O |,528,33r,679 n,1n,s59 rc.aa7.137 o \131374 a.7aa.74 4,359,1@ 4.013'298206
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The Kenyatta lnternational Convention Centre Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

NOTE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
16 INTANGIBLE AS'ET AND SOFTWARE

DETAII.J Softwerer
KJht

COST OR VALUATION
2019 t3.068.509

Addltlont
C.pital Revalultlon Rer€rve 23,7t5.995
At 3Oh June 2020 at Velurtlon 36,784,5U

A ,IORTIZATION
At 2019
Cha ior the Year t2.088.335
Prlor ment
At 3Gh ,,une 2O2O 12,088,335

NET SOOK VALUE
. 2Ol9 !t V.luatlon 36,7U,5U

At 3Oh June 2o2o 24.696.169
A ,toRTtzATroN
tu rt t.pt 2020
Amortlzltlon for the quarter .nding 3oth Sept 2020 2.057.808
Prlor )rrar adiunmant
A.@muhted Aho.tlzatlon !r rt 3(hh Sept 2020 14.1.16.143

NET BOOK VALUE

At July, 2Ol9 !t Vllustficn 36,7U,sU
Net book e!lu! .r .t 3oth ,.pt 2O2O 22,538,36t
AMORTIZATION
tu et D!. 2O2O

Amortlzrtion for thr quarter .nding 3ln Dec 2020 1.886.341
Pdor !,€!r adfurtment
A.6rmul.ted Amortizatlon .t .t 3ln Dec 2O2O 16,O32,484

NET BOOKVATUE
Al July, 2019 !t V.luldon 16,784,5U
Net book v.lur ar .i 3lrt De..mber 2O2O 20,752,O20
A /IORTIZATION

tu 6t MrEh 2O2l
Arnortlzation for the quarter ending 3ln March 2021 |,729.162
Prlor y!.r adJurtment
A.cumulated Amortlzatlon ar !t 3ln March 2O2l t7,761,646

NET SOOKVALUE
At July, 2019 !t Vrluatlon 36,784,5U
Net book v.lue .J .t 3ln Mrrch 2O2l I9,022,858
AA4ORTIZATION
fu rt June 2O2l
Amortlzatlon for the quarter endl ng 3oth June 2021 1.585.080
Prlor year adiurtment
&cumulated Amonlzltlon .r .t 3oth June 2021 19,346,726

NET EOOK VALUE

At July, 2019 !t V.luatlon 36,744.5U
Net book valu. rr rt 3oth Junc 2O2l t7,437,778
AMORTIZATION
tu 6t tept 2O2l
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t.453.00'

20,799,72v

Amonlzatlon fror the quarter.ndlnq 3Oh .rune 2021
Prlor year adrurtment
A(cumul.ted Amortlzatlon rr .t 3Oh 5.9t 2021

NET BOOK VALUE
At July, 2Ol9 !t V6luatlon 36,7U,504
Net book valu. !r .t 30th S€pt 2021 15,9U,775

AJ rt DG< 2O2l
Amortlzallon ior the quarter endlnr 3oth June 2O2l 1.331.931

Prlor year adrurtment
A.drmulated Amortlzitlon .r .t 3oth Dec 2O2l 22,131,660

NET EOOKVALUE
At July, 2019 rt Vlluatlon ,6,784,sO4
Net book v6lue .r rt 3ln De( 2021 14,652,844

Ar .t Mlr(h 2022
Amortlzatlon foi the qlarter endlni 3l5t March 2022 1,220,944
Prlor ye6r adjurtment
A.<umuLted Amordzldon rr .t 3ln M!r<h 2022 23,352,@a

NET BOOK VALUE
At July, 2Ol9 rt Vrluatlon 36,7U,5U
Net book valuc ., !t 3ln M.rch 2022 I3,431,896

Amortlzltlon 60r th. qu6iler .ndln8 3oth JurE 2022 l.ll9,2l3
Prlor year adiustm.nt
A.cumuhted Ahonlzltlon rr !t 3oth June 2022 24,4 ,421

NET BOOK VAIUE
At Juty, 2019 !t Vllurtlon 36,7U,5U
Net book valu. .r !t 3oth Jun€ 2022 12,312,583

Arno.tlzation for the quartcr .ndln8 SOth Sept 2022 1.o25.954
Prlor \€ar adiurtmant
A.cumulsted Ahortlz.tlon rt rt 3oth S.pt 2022 25,497,775

NET BOOK VALUE
At July. 2Ol9 !t V.luatlon 36.7U,5U
Net book valu. .r !t 3fth S.pt 2022 i.286,729
Arnortlzatlon for the qua(er.ndlng 3ln Oe< 2022 940,467
Prior )€ar adrunment
A(ormul.ted Amordz6tlon .r rt 3ln D.c 2022 26,438,242

NET BOOK VALUE

At July, 2Ol9.t V.lu.don 36,784jU
Net book value .t rt 3ln D€< 2022 1O,3,16,252

Amortlzatlon for the quarter.ndlnE 3tn March 2023 a62,102
Prlor ye6r adrurtment
A.omulsted Amortlzsdon ., rt 3ln Mlrdr 2023 273@34

NET EOOK VALUE

At July, 2Ol9 .t V.luatlon 36,7U,sO4
Net book v.lu! !, !t 3ln M.rch 2023 9.,44,160

Amortlzation 60r th€ quarter andinR 3oth June 2023 790.268
Prlor yaar adJurtment
A.cumulrted Amortlzatlon .r .t 3ln Mar.h 2023 28,090.612
upsode of ERP (wlP) 22.150,0@
NET BOOK VALUE

At Jul% 2019 !t Vlluarlon 36,744,504
Net book v.lue !r !t 3oth .rune 2023 30,843,892
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I8. DISCLOSURE:

Name of the Valuing Firm: SYA66A AND ASSOCIATES LIMITED-RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS

Qualifications: Prof Maurice Syagga PhD.M|SK, Registered and Licensed Valuer.
Revaluation basis applied: For book purposes at market value, and the insurable value for
insurance purposer.

Date of Valuation: l5th December 2Ol7

CONTI6ENCIES
i) World Trade Organization Conference (2015)

Kenya won the bid to host the lOth World Trade Organization (\}f,IO) Ministerial Conference
held from 15th to l8th December 2OI5. An lnter-Ministerial Organization Committee wat
established to coordinate all the activities geared towards successful hosting of the
Conference. Several WTO related projects were initiated and procured without following laid
out procurement procedures and regulations. The Corporation had recognized a provision of
Kshs.43lMillion as potential liabilities in its books. After verification of accruing pending bills
by office of Auditor 6eneral, Kshs.l98.4Million has been settled based on the
recommendation by Office of the Auditor Ceneral.
Out of the verified outstanding pending bill; there war payment a payment of lGhs 25.7
Million during the year. The Corporation continues to carry a further provision of Kshs 83.9
Million on WTO related pending bills in its books.

PENDING BILU -20Is(VERIFIED & RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT BY KENAO)
NO. NAME OF SUPPLIER AMOUNT

I Tintin Restaurant 23,4A7,374
2 Safaripark Hotel & Casino 21,147 .262
3 Sage Media 20,oo0,000
4 Radar Security Services Limited 18,270.O78
5 Bella Kitchen 9,O12,478
6 Viable Deco 6.813.7 60
7 Express Automation 6.000.800
t, Combiat Agencies 5,400.000
9 5ilverpearl Creations 5.204.393
'to Thamer Electrical 5.020.r78
|l Nordica Logistics 4,500,000
t2 Capital Group Limited 98.4 FM 4,125,600
l3 Pillar Audio Visual Services Limited 3.436,540
l4 Mema Trader Company Limited 3,244,899
't5 Classique Concepts 3.001.920
t6 Conference Caterers 2,992.166
t7 Elzika Enterprises 2.438.r00
l8 House 7 Degrees 2.436.240
l9 Hathaway 6eneral Merchants 2,067,300
20 Shwerter Supplies Limited 2,066,873
21 Repcon Group Limited r.970.000
22 5ukali & Associates Companv r.950.000
,2 Mansard ContractorJ 1.942.8sO
24 Pun,a Supplier Limited 1,928,s52
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PENDING BILIJ -20I5(VERIFIED & RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT BY KENAO)

NO. NAME OF SUPPLIER AMOUNT
25 SkWin Limited r.926.800
26 r.870.88rMilda Agencies

Moment Contractors Limited r,654.900
28 r.605,500Tango Logirticr
29 1,357 ,200Bluryl Media Limited
30 r.r 83.200Africa Metal Detectorr
3l ProximuJ Companv Limited 't,149,950

32 Opticom Kenya Limited r.095.602
33 Joel E.D Nyaseme and AssociateJ 986,000
34 Ravina Agencies Limited 981,000
35 Nuritek 750.000
36 542.920Marsland Services

37 Compassv Tradins ComDany Limited 496,500
38 49s.0005ap lnternational Company Limited
39 Creative Conrolidated syJtems 485,000
40 Candoors Business Services 477,365
4l Dew Capital lnvestments Ltd 471.225
42 Fairdeal Superstores Ltd 449.995
43 Artoffice Furniture Limited 434.800
44 Philiki Enterprises 431.740
45 Maline General 5upplies 412,500
46 Kenfront Con5ortium 400.500
47 Aquilla Venturei Limited 397.285
48 Prifannic CreationJ Limited 390.000
49 38t.000Sajucy Company Limited
50 Tamata 5upplies 338.305
5l Chana Construction 247,500
52 Fachimo Florist 20't.000
53 175.392Rescuemed 5upplies
54 Arinoc Ltd 164.220
55 Unique loo 142.912
56 Albin Enterprires Limited 'r07.600

57 96.940Becitech TechnoloRies
58 Advision Limited 92.220
59 Jaruh 5upplies 52.500
60 Security 6roup Limited 14.6r6

Total r80,9r8,452
Amount pald during the quarter

3,216.645Safaripark Hotel & Carino
2 2t,147 ,2625afaripark Hotel & Casino
3 5.204.393Thames Electrical

29.568,300Total
Balance as 30th September 2021 l5t,3 50,152

I Radar Security Services Limited 18,270,O78
2 3,436,540Pillar Audio ViJual Servicet Limited

2t,706,AA
Balance as 3ln Decemberr 2O2l 129,643,534

Balance as 3ln March 2022 129,643,534
'| Sase Media 20,000,000

Balance as 3oth June 2O22 1o9,643,534
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NO. AMOUNT

P DEN N IG LL5 ol-2 5 FI DE R& EC(vER o EN EDD RFO AP BYENT KEN
NAM oE SUF PPLI RE

I Bella Kitchenr & lnteriors Ltd 9,O12,47 8.OO
Combiat n(lel 5,400 0oo.oo

3 Maline General 5u lies 412.500.oo
4 Proximul co. Ltd 1.149.960.00
5 Pun 5u lies 1.928.562.00
5 Schwerter Su liet Limited 2.056.873.OO
? 5ukali & Associater r.950.oo0.00I Tamata Su ierl Limited 338.305.OO
9 Ta irticJ 1.605.500.00

23,864,178.OO
Ealanc: as 3ln Dec 2022 85.779.356.OO

I Milda noet 1.870.881.OO
Balance as 3Oth March 2023 83.908,475.OO

Balance as 3oth June 2O23 83.908.475.00

ii) Tax Liability
Tax liability is Kshs.222.8 Million made up of corporate tax of Kshs.l9l.5 Million and VAT
liability of Kshs. 31.3 Million. The corporation remainr committed to settling pending tax
liabilities as and when funds are available. Due to cash flow conrtraints, thJ torporation
continues to implement the payment of instalment plan of approximately lzshs.! Million
per Month. During the year corporation managed to pay Ksh.45.2 Million on vAT
arrears.

iii). Pending Litigation
The corporation has 15(Fifteen) cases pending in different courts i.e. Employment and
Labour Relations Court, land Matters. Commercial Matters. Judicial Review Matters and
Tenancy/ Landlord disputes. Depending on the outcome of the casej the total contingent
liabilities arising from the same is approximately 450 (Four Hundred and Fifty) Million.
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I9.AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Reference
No on

the
extemal
iudit
report

lssuey'Observations
from Auditor

Management Comments Focal
Point

Person
to

resolve
the issue

Status
(Resolved

/Not
resolved)

Time
frame

l.l Lack of title to
COMESA.
courtyard Land.
6arden square
restaurant

The Corporation is in talk with
the relevant 6overnment
agencies with an aim of getting
titie for the said pieces of land.

cEo Not
resolved

On
going

2.1 Long outstanding
debt5

6iven that most of the KICC
sales are on credit. the debt
portfolio hai increased in
tandem with the increase in
sales. However, management is

in the process of contractinS the
services of debt collectoB to
assist in debt recovery.

cEo Not
Resolved

On
going

3.0 Outitanding debts
for staff who left
the organization

Demand noticer to former
members of staff to clear
outstandinS debts. So far 2

former members of staff have
fully paid up their debts

cEo Not
resolved

On
going

4.0 Flawed
procurement
process- flX/TO)
Conference

special audit for WTO pro)eas
wa5 undertaken by KENAO and
rerultant bills recommended for
payment settled.

cEo Not
Resolved

On
going

Patricla Ondeng'
Ag. Chief Executive Officer

CPA;6J-amer Mwaura Hon. Adelina Mwau, OCW
Director Corporate Services Chairperson

ICPAK Member No. 14575 Board of Directors
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L Acronynr rnd Glossery of Terms

ITRS

MD

I{T

Ptr'M

PSATIB

KOX'C

R&D

DFPPF

MoD

I{T

cLs
FY

Inrcmational Financial Reporting Stardards.

Managing Director.

National Treasury.

Public Finance Management.

Public Sector Accomting Standards Board.

Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation.

Research and Development.

Defence Food Pmduction and Processing Factory.

Ministry of Defence.

National Treasury.

Chief of Legal Services.

Financial Year.
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KENYA ORDNANCE FACTORIES CORPORATION
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2. Key Entity Information

a) Background information
The Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation (KOFC) was established as a State Corporation in

July 1997. The Corporation was exempted from the provision ofthe State Corporation Act (CAP

446) vide the legal Notice No. 522 of the 3l October 1997. However, no gazettement was done

to this effect during the changeover to a State Corporation from RTS Ngano Farm Project.

KOFC mandate was expanded through KOFC (Amendment) Order, 2020 gazetted on 07

January 2021 to include production of defence artillery; manufacture of apparels; assembling

and manufacture of motor vehicles; construction of roads, water pans buildings; and other

structures and carrying food processing.

KOFC is a licensed ammunition dealer and water undertaker

b) Principal Activities

The Corporation principle activities are to: '

a. Manufacture military hardware, machinery and equipment.

b. Produce defense articles.

c. Manufactureapparels.

d. Assemble and manufacture motor vehicles.

e. Construct roads, water pans, buildings and other structures and carry out food
processing.

The Corporation can also engage in other activities normally connected with and incidental to

the object stated above as the Board may, with approval ofthe president determine.

Mrndrte
The mandate of the Corporation is to:

a. Manufacture Military Hardware, Machinery and equipment.

b. Produce defense articles.

c. Manufactureapparels.
d. Assemble and manufacture motor vehicles.

e. Construct roads, water pans, buildings and other structures and carry out food
processing.

The Corporation may engage in other activities normally connected with and incidental to the

object stated above as the Board may, with approval ofthe president, determine.

Vision
The vision of the Corporation is to become a premier manufacturer of world class Military
hardware and related products.
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Mission
The mission ofKOFC is to enhance National Security through guaranteed production ofquality
small arms ammunition and related auxiliary products.

Objectives
KOFC has established its objectives as follows:

a. Self-sufficiency in supply of small arms ammunition.

b. Transfer of relevanl technology.

c. Sale of surplus ammunition to friendly countries.

d. Create employment in line with Vision 2030.

e. Enhance Industrialization in line with vision 2030.

f. Diversification. (Production of dehydrated vegetables, bakery products, Farming,

Milling of Maize and purified bottled water).

ISO Certification
KOFC is ISO 9001-2008 CERTIFIED. The certificates registration number

KEBS/QMS/RF/036 Rev. 02 was reissued by the Kenya Bureau of Standards on the 07 June

2016 and expired on 14 September 2018. The ISO training has been concluded and the

documentation and certification process is on-going.

c) Directors
The Directors who served the entity during the yearlperiod were as follows:

10

Dlrcc'tor Poridon Ddo
I Gen @td) Robert K Kibochi Chairman Lefton28 Apt2023

2 Gen Francis O Ogolla (CDF) Chairman Appointed on 28 Apr 2023

J Lt Gen (Rtd) W R Koipaton Director Left on 20 Jul 22

4 Lt Gen Peter M Njiru (Comd KA) Director Appointed on 20 ltl 22

5 Maj Gen John M Omenda (Comd KAF) Director Appointed on 23 luJ'2l

6 Maj Gen Jimson L Mutai (Comd KN) Director Appointed on 29 Sep 20

7 Dr Julius Muia (Former PS NT) Director Left on 0l Dec 22

8 Dr I M Mohamed (Former PS Defence) Director Left on 0l Dec 22

I Dr Chris Kiptoo (PS NT) Director Appointed on 0l Dec 22

Mr Patrick Mariru (PS Defence) Director Appointed on 01 Dec 22

I l. Brig@td)JNMuiruri Director Appointed on 25 Feb 22

12_ Brig(Rtd)PTIbeere Director Appointed on 25 Feb 22

13. Brig(Rtd)DCBartonjo Director Appointed on 24 May 22

14. MajGenMKOng'oyi Managing Director Left on 26 May 23

15. MajGenDNKamuri Managing Director Appointed on 26May 23

16. Brig Yvonne K Kirui (CLS) BoD Secretary Appointed on 23 Jll21
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d) Corporete Secretiry
Brig Yvonne Kerubo
P.O. Box 6634-30100

Eldoret

e) Corporate Heedquerters
Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation (KOFC)

RTS Ngano Project

Kitale Eldoret Road

P. O. Box 6634

Eldoret

f) Contacts
Email: fin@kofc.co.ke, info@kofc.co.ke
Website: www.kofc.co.ke
Tel:+254 722 209639 and +254 773 589 481

g) Bankers
Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Eldoret Branch

P. O. Box 2948 - 30100

Eldoret

Kenya Commercial Bank
Uganda Road Branch

P. O. Box 5197 - 30100

Eldoret

Equity Bank of Kenya
Eldoret Branch

P.O. Box 2201 - 30100

Eldoret

National Bank of Kenya

Eldoret Branch

P.O. Box 220130100

Eldoret

h) Independent Auditors
The Auditor General

Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P. O. Box 30084
Nairobi
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j. Principlc Lcgel Advisor
The Attomey General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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3. The Board of Directors

Gen Francis Omondi Ogolla
MGH EBS HSC'ndc' (K)'psc' (FRA)

Chairman

Gen Ogolla is the Chief of the Defence Forces. He is a
graduate of Ecole Militaire de Paris and National
Defence College of Kenya. He holds a Diploma in
Intemational Studies and Military Science from
Egerton University, a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Political Science, Armed Conllict and Peace Studies

and Master of Arts in Intemational Studies from the

University of Nairobi. He has served as an observer,
military information officer and held various

appointments in training, command and staffpositions.
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Lt Gen Peter M Njiru
MGH CBS'rcds' (UK)'psc' (K)

Lt Gen Njiru is the Commander of the Kenya Army
Commander. He is a graduate of the RCDS Course

in the United Kingdom and hold a Master of Arts
degree in Intemational Security and Strategy from
King's College, London. He has held various
appointments in training, commald and staff
positions and served in the United Nations mission.

Maj Gen John M Omenda
EBS SS OGW'rcds' (UK)'psc' (K)

Maj Gen Omenda is the Commander of the Kenya
Air force. He is a graduate of Defence Staff College
of Kenya and Royal College of Defence Studies,

UK. He holds a Diploma in Strategic Studies,

Bachelor of Arts in Peace and Conflict studies and

Master of Arts in Intemational Security and Strategy.

He has held various appointments in training,
command and staff duties-
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r
Maj Gen Jimson L Mutai

MGH MBS 'ndc' (K) 'psc' (K)
Maj Gen Mutai is the Commander Kenya Navy. He
is a graduate of National Def'ence College Kenya and

holds Diplomas in Intemational Studies and

Strategic Studies. He is currently undertaking
master's in international relations and World Order
at University of Leicester (UK). He has held various

appointments in training. command and staff duties.

t- rt{o -€:

.ta
Mr Patrick Mariru

Mr. Mariru is the Principal Secretary, MoD. He is

advocate ofthe advocate ofthe High Court ofKenya.

He holds a diploma in law, bachelor's degree in law,

master's degree in public policy and management and

master's degree in divinity. He is cunently pursuing

PhD in leadership and governance and master's

degree in sustainable development. He is a dedicated

Public Policy and Management Expert with local,

national and intemational experience ofover l5 years in public policy development, communily

engagement, program development and supporting national govemment initiatives.

Dr Chris Kiptoo
Dr. Kiptoo is the Principal Secretary at the National
Treasury. He holds a PhD in intemational
macroeconomics, finance specialization, masler's
degree and bachelor's degree in economics from
Egerton University. He is in macroeconomics
management. He has vast experience in economics
having serv'ed at CBK, IMF and as the economic
adviser to the lormer prime minisrer.
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Brig (Rtd) John Muiruri
psc(K), ndc(K), EBS

Brig (Rtd) John Muiruri is a former Engineer Brigade

Commander. He holds a Bachelors of Art degree in
Design and a Masters of Art in Intemational Studies

from the University ol Nairobi. He has an advance

diploma in Civil and Military Engineering from the

US Army Engineer School. He is also a registered

Ph.D student at the Technical University ofKenya. He

served with the UN in fbrmer Yugoslavia and also U.S

Central Command in Tampa, Florida.

.I
tj-.

Brig(Rtd)PTlbeere
EBS 'ndc' (K) 'dsc' (K)

' Brig (rtd) P T Ibeere retired from active military
service in October 2012 and is currently engaged

in personal businesses. He is a graduate of the
National Defence College. Kenya and holds a
Diploma in Intemational Studies. He also holds a
degree in Mechanical Engineering tiom the

University of Nairobi. While in military service, he

held various appointments in command and staff duties

Brig(Rtd)DCBartonjo
EBS 'ndc' China 'psc' Zam

Brig(Rtd) D C Bartonjo joined KDF in l98l as a

cadet officer and was commissioned on 27 Jtrl

1982. He is an infantry officer by prof-ession and

holds a diploma in military science tiom Fort
Benning GA USA. He held various appointments

in command and training including Commanding

officer I KR, Directing Staff DSC Karen Kenya,

Commandant School of Infantry, Deputy Brigade

Commander 4th Brigade and 2nd Brigade, Sector

Commander AMISOM, Deputy Commandant
Kenya Military Academy and Commandant

Def'ence Forces Memorial Hospital.
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a

MajGenDNNKamuri
EBS 'nwc' (USA) 'psc' (K)

Maj Gen Kamuri is the Managing Director KOFC
having been promoted and appointed on 266 May
2023. He holds a Master of Art degree in
Intemational Relations, a BSc degree in Electrica.l

Engineering and a Certificate in Small Arms and

Ammo Production. He has also done several other

courses including Counter Terrorism and Crisis
Management Course. He has served as a Lectwer at

Kenya Institute of Mass Communication and War
College in USA. He has also served in several

command and staff positions in KDF prior to being
appointed Managing Director KOFC including the following: Chief of Infrastructure, Chief of
RandD, Col Sea Programs and Commanding Offrcer Technical Services in KNB Mtongwe

Brig Yvonne Kerubo
'ndc' (K) 'psc' (K)

Brig Kirui is the Chief of Legal Servicei at the

Ministry of Defence. She is an advocate of the High
Court of Kenya and is the Company Secretary,

KOFC. She holds a bachelor's degree in law,
master's degree in business administration and is a
certified public secretary (CPS).

O
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4. Key Management Team

1

MajGenDNNKamuri

) Master of Art in Intemational
Relations.

D BSc in Electrical Engineering.
) Certificate in Small arms

Production.

Managing
Director

2

Brig O M Rajab

) Master of Art in Intemational
Studies.

) Bachelor of Military Science
) Diploma in Strategic Studies

Deputy
Managing
Director
KOFC

,

Brig C N Mathenge

) Diploma in Strategic Studies
Course

D Kenya Polytechnic - Motor
Vehicle Tech I

F Young Officers Electrical
Mechanical Engineering
Course

Managing
Director
DFPPF

4

Brig Y Kerubo

F Masters in Business
Administration

F Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
) Diploma in Law (KSL)

Corporate
Secretary

xl



KEIYYA ORDNANCE FACTORIES CORPORATION
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

5

Col R K Kiptoo

F Masters of Science in Electrical
Engineering Couse System and
Design and Technology

F Bachelor of Electrical and
Electronics Engineering

F Post Graduate Diploma in
Strategic Studies

General
Manager
KOFC

6

Col C K Aritho

) Master of Art in National
Security Strategy.

F Bachelors of Arts
) Diploma in Business

Management.
) Certified Public Accountant

Section 2
) Basic Intelligence Security

Course

Human
Resource and
Administrative
Manager

7

LtCol CSMelanyi

*-

F Computer Security Awareness
Course

) Defence Instruction Technique
Course

) Certificate in Military Science
F Young Officer Engineer

Course

Maintenance
Manager

8

'I
LtColKKKeitany

F Master of Science in
Procurement and logistics.

) Posl Craduate Diploma in
Strategic Studies.

) Bachelor of Arts.
F Senior Leadership, Command

and Management Course

Procurement
and Stores
Manager

9

Eng Leo K Kerich

) Masters in Chemicals
Engineering (ongoing)

) Masters in Business
Administration

D Degree in Chemical and
Process Engineering

Production
and Quatity
Assurance
Manager
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Maj R M Kararu

D Degree in Military Science
) Post Graduate Diploma in

Strategic Studies.
! Diploma in Military Science.
F Diploma in Military

Intelligence Course.
) Basic Supply Course.
F Logistics and Management

Course.

Commercial
Services
Manager

1l

Mai O O Akuk

) Degree in Military Science
F Certified Public Accountant

Advance Level
F Officers Basic Supply Course
F Pay Masters Course

Finance
Manager

12.

M N Njogu

D Masters in Agricultural
Economics (on going)

) Bachelor of Science in
Agribusiness Management

) Diploma in Agriculture
Education and Extension

! Senior Management Course
(Kenya School of Govemment)

Farm Manager

13.

Maj Z M Oteri

F Degree in Military Strategic
and Security Studies

Plant Manager
Thika Water
Bottling Plant

t4

Maj E M Mburu
t

) Degree in Military Science (on
going)

! Diploma in Military Science
) Certified Public Accountant

Section 2

Plant Manager
Moi Airbase
Bakery
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i,
15.

Capt S M Ndichu

D Bachelor of Science
l{schatonigs Fngrneerrng

D Diploma in Business
Adminisration

Plant Man4ger
cilgil Bakery
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5. Chairman's Strtement

I have great pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the Kenya

Ordnance Factories Corporation (KOFC) for the financial year 202212023. KOFC core mandate

is to produce Ammunition from basic raw materials for self-sufficiency and reliance. KOFC
plays a vital/strategic role being a stable source of ammunition and food to our troops enabling

them deliver the punch required in line with KDF vision "One Force, One Mission". In line with
the Govemment's bottom-up Transformation Agenda (BETA), KOFC's participates in
Manufacturing and National Food and Nutrition Security Programmes.

KOFC has partially managed to meet Govemment of Kenya (GOK) security agencies

requirements. Shortfall in supplying all orders.is attributed to various challenges including aged

machines characterized by frequent breakdowns, lack ofspares due to obsolete technology and

long lead time in acquisition of raw materials from overseas. Retention of qualified and

experienced staff has also become a challenge.

The Board of Directors continues to provide strategic and effective leadership in steering KOFC
towards achieving its objectives. Every challenge presents an opportunity therefore, this is the

time to strengthen our foundations and purpose lo meet the expectations of our stakeholders.

Taking advantage of our market presence, knowledge workforce, quality products, I am

confident that KOFC will be able to meet all security agencies product requirements.

In view ofthe prevailing circumstances during the period under review, our trading performance

and production presented was short ofour expectations. We shall continue to accomplish what
we set out to do, move quickly and easily to take advantage ofnew opportunities, venture into
unchartered territories, offer quality products and services which has been our destination,

continuously introduce new products for security agencies in line with Bottom-Up Economic

Model.

Going forward, we will continue to protect our Nation, support our short, medium and long term

slrategies to emerge stronger and redouble our efforts to grow operations. We intend to achieve
these through rebuilding ofour capability, modemization and taking advantage ofour projected

investrnents in new and emerging technologies. The Board and management will continue to
work together to strengthen the Corporation's intemal controls and risk management, promote

a culture of integrity and strive for the highest ethical business standards. Our concerted efforts
will certainly improve product delivery to our customers.

KOFC intends to partner with intemational stakeholders in modernization and technology

transfer in line with the govemment's slrategic decision to revamp KOFC both in acquiring new
production line and infrastructure. Acquisition of new ammunition production line is in advance

stages in procurement. KOFC will also invest in new capabilities to better connect with our
customers, enabling us to provide broader and better options to security agencies while
leveraging on technology to reach them on various platforms.
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ln conclusion, while the Corporation continues to leverage on thc strength and breadtb of our

portfolio to deliver sustainable stakeholders retum' we rcmain cautiously optimistic given

bottlenecks that have been highlighted above. Our business model and smtegy are resilient to

ensure zustainability of the business in the medium to long term. KOFC cootinues to implement

a comprchensive action plan to mitigate costs and tiShtly manage operations.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to recognize oul customers, consumers,

business parhers as well as the govemments of the respective countries we partrer with for your

continued Support. We also wish to thaDk oul management and employees for thcir continued

agility and resilience despite the challenges. I would also like to sincerely thank my fellow

Board mernbers for their counsel, support and dedication throughout the year and for delivering

strongly.

I urge my fellow Board Members to work zealously in the best interests of the Corporation.

Thank you.

Genere F O Ogolla EB HSC CBS 'NDC' (K)'PSC'(FRA)

Chairman, Board of Dlrectors
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6. Report of the Chief Executive Oflicer/ MD/ DG

KOFC is a strategic installation that plays a key role in enhancing National Security and

contributes significaltly to the Govemment's Bottom-Up business model specifically in
Manufacturing, National Food and Nutrition Security. The management has been concentrating

in operations in Eldoret, Nairobi, Gilgil and Thika. Efforts are being made to address issues of
the Defence Food Production and Processing Factory (DFPPF) to make itself sustaining that

does not depend on grants from government.

The Corporation is cognizant of and appreciates efforts by the Govemment to address

ammunition production challenges through acquisition and installation ofnew production lines

which are at an advanced stage in procurement. DFPPF is in its fifth year ofoperations since its
official commissioning in October 2018. However, the DFPPF has so far performed below par

as manifested in the sustained lack of profitability mainly due to the high cost raw materials.

This shortcoming is being addressed to ensure paradigm shift and robust drive to ingrain
business fundamentals. The main objective of these is to underscore the centrality of service

delivery to customers, efficient management of finances and judicious employment of assets.

Despite the many challenges now inherent in this operating environment, the Corporation
continued to discharge its mandate to manufacture Small Arms Ammunitions, Machinery and
Equipment and engaging in other activities normally connected with the incidental to the said
object. In the year 202212023, the Corporation generated revenue from goods and services
amounting to KShs I,153,066,056.79 compared to the previous year 202112022 generation of
KShs I,153601,484.00. The funds have gone a long way in fi.rnding both budgeted recunent and
capital expenditure.

The National Treasury and Planning through the Ministry of Defence in Financial Year
202212023 allocated the Corporation a recurrent and capitation grant of KShs 135,000,000.00

and KSbs 100,000,000.00 both totalling to KShs 235,000,000.00. The recurrent grant ofKShs
135,000,000.00 was to supplement the FY 202212023 approved budget and KShs
f00,000,000.00 is for the funding ofthe ongoing farm mechanization program.

The KOFC management is continuing with the execution of FY 2015/16 -FY 2024/25 revised
strategic plan aimed at tuming around the operations ofthe Corporation. To sustain our growth,
and continue supporting the Security Agencies requirements, concerted efforts are being put in
place to address production issues relating to the existing production line. With our well-
equipped workforce coupled with higher capacity production line, KOFC is well positioned to
deliver on purpose and continue to fully and competitively provide the security agencies. The
management is confident that this plan will assure strategic growth and improved returns and
profits.

I conclude by sincerely thanking all those who supported the Corporation in financial year

2022/2023 including the customers, the Govemment of Kenya represented by the Ministry of
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Defence, National Treasury and Planning and all other stake holders. I wish to thank the Board
of Directors for their uttermost support during the year. God Bless.

MA"IOR GENERAL D N N KAMURI EBS .nwc, (USA) psc (K)
Managing Director
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7. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 202212023

The Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation (KOFC) has in place a revised Strategic Plan (FY
2015116toFY 2024125) anchored on the vision 2030, the 3'd Medium Term Plan (MTP III) and

the Big Four Agenda among other policy documents. The Srategic Plan is aimed at steering the
Corporation towards achievement of her Mission and Vision. The plan has the following
Strategic/Pillars namely:

i. Operation Excellence.

ii. Customer Service Excellence.

iii. Business Growth.
iv. Good Govemance.

From the Strategic themes, the Corporation has identified the below mentioned objectives.

These are:

i. Increase capacity in production of Arms and Ammunition.
ii. Increase engineering capacity to support ammunition production and act as a

source of revenue.

iii. Attain self-suffrciency in manufacture ofapparels for all security agencies.

iv. Attain self-sufficiency in combat supplies for security agencies.

v. Provide a safe environment.

vi. Develop and retain a productive professional workforce.

The table below presents performance against set targets as per the revised Strategic Plan.
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Objcctivc l ltrcrcr33 Crprcity in Pmduction of Arms rnd Ammunitiotr

Stretegr Activities Period Performence
Indicrtor

Actor
20t5n6-20tan9 20t9n0 -2022D023

Enhancement
of
Pncduction
Capacity

Removal of Production
Chock Point

Allocated Funds Ac4uired Ballistic
Analyzer and Gauging
Machine

Two machines
acquired

KOFC

Upgrade and
Modemization of the
Production Lines

Conducted In{epth
Analysis

Acquired case gauging
machine

One machine
acquired

KOFC

Manufacture of small
atms

Allocation of funds Number of Arms
Produced

KOFC

Maintain a two year
Buffer Stock of Raw
Materials

Allocated fimds and
procurcd Brass, Primers,
Powder and Copper Clad

procured Brass, Primers,
Powder and Copper Clad

Increased stock
levels

KOFC
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ob ective 2.Increase En Ca acl to su rt Ammunition Production rnd ect as a source of income.neertn
PeriodStratery Activities

20t5t16-20181t9 20t9t20 - 2022t2023
Performance
Indicetor

Actor

Production oftools and
spares to support ammo
production

Allocated Funds
Acquired Spectrophoto
meter

One machines
acquired

KOFC

Modemization of
Machines

Procurement of Profile
Projector ongoing

Acquisition ofone
machine

KOFC

Assembly, repair and
rehabilitation of small
zums

Produced weapon spares Rehabilitated small
arms

Assorted weapons
repaired

KOFC

Fabrication ofCeneral
spare parts

Produced Agricultural
and Industrial spares

Produced Agricultural
and Industrial spares

Several numbers
of spares produced

KOFC

Establishment of
Welding and fabrication
shop

Fabricated soldier boxes
and beds
Acquired portable heavy
duty machines

Fabricated soldier boxes
and beds

Numbers of
Soldier boxes,
beds and boxes

KOFC

Expand the
General
Engineering
Capability.

Fabrication of
DEFKITCH (K) 2012

Allocated funds and
improved DEFKITCH -
(K) 2012

Acquired Water Jet,
Bending, Pressing and
Polishing of machines

Four machines
acquired

KOFC
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Objective 3. Attain self-sufliciency in manufecture of all Security Agencies.

oh ective 4.Attain self-sulficien in Combat Su lies tion for Securi encres

Strstesi Activities Period Performance
Indicator

Actor
2015n6-
2018fig

20t9t20 -2022t2023

Introduction of
Apparel
Production Line

Establishment of Apparel
Production Line

Sourcing of funds Garments
produced

KOFC

PeriodStretegr Activities
2015fi6-2018n9 2019t20 -2022t2023

Performence
Indicstor

Actor

Bakery and
Confectionaries

Feasibility done
Constructed Hanger at MAB
Acquired Mixer, Moulder, Divider,
Weighing Machines, ovens and
prover

Full Production Assorted Bread
products produced

KOFC

Maize Milling Established second line
Produced KDF maize flour

Produced KDF maize
flour

KDF maize flour
produced

KOFC

Animal Feed
Production

Produced animal feeds Produced animal
feeds

Animal feeds
produced

KOFC

Water Bottling Acquired labelling machine
Produced bottled water

Produced bottled
water

Quantity of
bottled water
produced

KOFC

Introduction
and
enhancement
of Ration
Production

Dehydration of
Vegetables and
Processing of
l?uits

KOFCConstructed Hanger
Acquired of washing, blanching,
drying, peeling, dicing, cutting, bin
dryers, and packing Machines
Dehydrated assorted vegetables

Dehydrated assorted
vegetables

Quantity of
Assorted
vegetables
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

The Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation Board of Directors embrace principles of good

corporate govemance in steering the Corporation to effectively achieve its mandate for
sustainable groWh in Govemment and its stakeholder's expectations. As a Semi-Autonomous

Govemment Agency (SAGA) under the Ministry of Defence, the Corporation remains
steadfast in complying with statutory and regulatory requirements as outlined in the
Constitution and the State Corporations Act Govemance and other applicable regulations.

Besides complying with the Code, the Board has committed to embed intemal rules of
engagement to support corporate govemance. These intemal guidelines are constituted in the
Code ofConduct and Ethics to which every Director and employee attest their adherence.

Board of Directors
The Board is collectively responsible for the overall direction ofthe Corporation with oversight
and review of the management, administration and overall govemance. The Board exercises

its oversight role by setting appropriate business strategy and overseeing delivery against the
set objectives. The Board currently consists of nine (9) directors, one ( I ) Managing Director
and including the Chairman, of whom three (3) are independent directors. Committee guided
by the Board Appointment Guidelines duly approved by the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer is by appointrnents by the Defence Council and their terms are dictated by the same.

Board Operations
The Board has in place an annual programme that sets out the Board activities for the year.

This enables the Board to have a detailed review ofthe Corporation's operation's and strategy,
approve business plans, budgets and financial statements. The Board Chairman, in conjunction
with the Managing Director, sets the agenda for each meeting. The Board receives all
information relevant to the discharge of its obligations in accuate and timely manner enabling
it to maintain effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues. As
provided in the Board Charter, the Board is entitled to seek independent professional advice at
the Corporation's expense on any matter connected with the discharge of its responsibilities.

Board Charter
The Board has adopted a Board Charter that provides a framework for the effective operation
ofthe Board, which sets out the: Board's roles, composition and responsibilities; Relationship
and interaction between the Board and Management; and Authority delegated by the Board to
Management and Committees.

Board of Directors Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the business is financially viable and properly
managed so as to protect and enhance the Corporation's interest over time. To achieve
continued prosperity for the Corporation, the Board exercises leadership, enterprise, integrity
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and good judgement and shall always act in the best interest of the Corporation. The following

are the roles and responsibilities ofthe Board:

a. Provide effective leadership and collaborate with the Management in
articulating the institution's values, vision, mission and strategies and developing the

strategic plan and ordering strategic priorities ofthe Corporation that are sustainable.

b. Develop an organizational stnrcture to support the achievement of strategic

objectives; monitor the operational performance and establish policies and processes

that ensure the integrity of the Corporation intemal controls and risk management.

c. Review and approve the business plans and annual budget proposed by the

Executive Management and evaluate the outcomes thereof.

d. Establish such Committees, Policies and Procedures that will facilitate effective

discharge of the Board's fiduciary and leadership fi.rnctions.

e. Establish and oversee the Corporation corporate governance framework that

promotes standards of ethical behaviour.

f. Ensure the Corporation's compliance with all applicable laws, regulations,

govemance codes, guidelines and regulations and establish systems to effectively

monitor and control compliance across the Corporation.

g. Ensure that systems and procedures are in place for the Corporation to run

effectively and efficiently.

h. Establish appropriate staffing and remuneration policies for all employees. Act
in the best interest olthe Corporation and its business taking into consideration the

interest of the stakeholders.

i. Ensure that the Corporation is, and is seen to be, a responsible corporate citizen

by having regard to not only the financial aspects of the business ofthe Corporation,

but also the impact the business operations have on the environment and the society

within which it operates.

Board Meetings
The Board has a schedule of its meetings and the agenda for each Board meeting is prepared

and circulated to members at least seven (7) days in advance. Board meetings are held every

quarter and in exceptional circumstances as dictated by requirements of its operations.

Board Skills and Diversity
The Corporation seeks to have a Board that has a diverse mix of individuals with relevant

attributes, skills, knowledge and experience. The Board has the appropriate mix of skills,
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knowledge and experience to deal with current and emerging issues and effectively guide the

management in attainment of its strategic objectives.

The Board promotes diversity and encourages initiatives to improve gender parity rn

management.

Board Induction and Development

All newly engaged Directors receive a comprehensive induction progrtlmme to acquaint them

with their responsibilities as well as keep them abreast of the Corporation's strategy and

operations. The induction progftrm consists of detailed presentations and briefings from the

Executive Management and the Company Secretary on Corporation operations.

The Board members are required to undergo regular training and bench marking to enable them

to discharge their responsibilities effectively. Members receive regular briefings from the

executive management on developments in the media industry, both locally and globally. The

Board is also apprised of regulatory changes that directly impact on the operations of the

Corporation.

Board Evaluation
In line with the provisions of the Mwongozo Code, the Board reviews its performance and that

of its Committees, and the Directors, the Chairman and Company Secretary, on an annual basis.

The evaluation is conducted by each Director completing a Board Evaluation Form which is

designed to obtain feedback on the Board's performance in key thematic areas. The Evaluation

also seeks to identiS development opportunities and areas of improvement. Results are collated

confidentially by the Company Secretary and reviewed by the Chairman. The evaluation

ensues thal the Board continues to be,,ffective. The last evaluation observed that Board

members have a good understanding of the business and receive the information they need to
inform decisions.

Board Independence and Conflicts of Interest
The Board comprises ofseven (9) non-executive directors, ofwhom three (3) are independent.

The Board of Directors are free of any business or other relationship that could materially

interfere with, or reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the directors' capacity

to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues before the Board and to act in the best

interest of the Corporation. The directors are obligated to fully disclose to the Board any real

or potential conflict of interest, which comes to the directors' attention, whether direct or
indirect. All business transactions with all parties, directors or their related parties fie carried

out at arm's length. Directors are required to give advance notice of any conflict issues to the

Chairman or Company Secretary. The Board maintains a Conflict of Interest register and this

is tabled as the first agenda item ofall Board meetings. Directors are excluded from the quorum

and vote in respect ofany matters in which they have an Interest.
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

Core Mandate of the Corporation
Despite the many challenges inherent in this operating environment, the Corporation continued

to discharge its mandate to manufacture Military Hardware, Machinery and Equipment and

engaging in other activities normally connected with the incidental to the said object.

Operation
Ammunition Production installed lines were commissioned in 1996 and projected to produce

20 million rounds in a single shift which translated to a production output ofquantity 16 million

at 80% efficiency. Ammunition production machines have been characterized by frequent

breakdowns caused by old age and obsolescence which hampered prompt repairs. Mitigating

measures towards addressing these challenges include establishment of new ammunition

production lines with high capacities which is currently at an advanced stage.

Over the last five years, production has been decreasing as customer's demand increases. The

table below illustrates how the production has been going down over a period of time.

TRENDS FORTHE LAST FIVE YEARS

n

o

o

25

20

l5

l0

5
c,

d qj
2Ot8/2019 2OL9I2O2O

t Market demand

2O2O/202r 202712022

r Quantity Produced r Deficit

202212023

Financial Performance
The Corporation continues to undertake vital production activities as mandated. Its overall

financial performance to date is nonetheless still weighed down by challenges related to

diminished ammunition production levels from existing lines and shortage of corresponding

production ofraw materials and tools. Efforts to address the limited production capacity are at

an advanced stage and this will finally be achieved by the installation of new production lines.

Meanwhile, procurement of the Case Gauging Machine and implementation of an efficient raw

materials procurement and delivery conract will further enhance productiviry. Likewise,

improved farm production is being addressed through funding of the Mechanization

Programme.

Food Processing Factory financial status is fairly weak but its activities have been streamlined.

Tabulated below is the Corporation Financial Performance for the past five years' period:

n

oi

I

n9
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Years (Audited)

2021n022 2020D021 2019n020 2018n019 2017t2018

172,241,730 132,778,633 (191,632,846) (s 1s,s35,062) 258,698,444

Profit Profit Loss Loss Loss

Revenue
Revenue generated over the past five years is as tabulated below:

2021n022 2020n021 2019n020 20fin019 2017nofi

Ammo 675,686,976 604,0?t,182 695,835,135 590,915,553 725,760,902

Farm 209,r38,946 148,383,807 77,839,634 97,413,266 103,200,106

Others 259,736,098 393,895,303 260,4s6,244 337,179,757 234,301,130

I(Shs 1397,633,159 was generated during the year (FY 2022D023) under review against a set

target of Kshs 1,607,793,829leading to a variance of Kshs 210'160,670 as detailed below:

(a) Staff Welfare and Administrative Activities
The administration activities involve the provision of a conducive and enabling

environment for working.

(b) Major Risks Fecing the Corporation
a. Technology changes.

b. Non availability ofraw materials and Long Lead.

c. Mindset on locally produced goods.

d. Erratic Weather (Climate Change).

KshsKshs KshsRevenue
r42,890,r74675,686,976818,577, r s0Sale of ammunition
(r1,209,824)1s0,149,044138,939,220Bakery sales
(67,7s8,846)149,884,r37 217,642,983Farm and Milling sales

16,604,04479,0s6,661 62,452,6t7Bottled water sales
2,973,262 5,5s2,9678,526,229DefKitch and GED sales
7,038,434 ( 1,831,584)s,206,850Piped water sales

2,432,8989,s6"t,10212,000,000Finance income
r23,766479,816Disposal of general stores 603,582

123,357,075160,000,000 36,642,925DFPPF sales
235,000,00023s,000,000Grant
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(c) Pcrformence Contrect Implcmcntrtion Finencial Yeer 202212023

The purpose of the Performance Contracts (PC) is to provide an objective assessment of
results realized and challenges experienced by the Corporation that impair performance.
The objectives of the Performance Contract (PC) were drawn from the Kenya Ordnance
Factories Corporation Strategic Plan and anchored on the Kenya Vision 2030, the Medium
Term Plan (MTP) ID and the Sector Performance Standards (SPS). The Corporations PC

FY 2022/2023 was negotiated with the Ministry of Defence, Board of Directors and the

Managing Director cascaded it to all relevant implementation departments of the
Corporation

(d) Cepitel Projects
Ammunition Production installed capacity lines were commissioned way back in mid-80's
and projected to produce 20 million rounds in a single shift which translated to a production
output of quantity l6 million at 80% effrciency. Ammunition Production Machines have

been characterized by frequent breakdowns caused by old age and obsolescence which
hampered prompt repairs. Mitigating measues towards addressrng these challenges include
establishment of modem ammunition production lines with high capacities which is

currently at an advanced stage. Acquisilion and operationalization of new production lines
will in the long run restore KOFC to financial stability and prosperity.

In order to enhance farm production and minimize outsourcing of farm services, the

Corporation has continued to invest in farm machinery and equipment. During the year
under review, the Ministry of Defence allocated Ksh l00M for KOFC farm mechanization.

f. KOFC Compliance with Strtutory Requirements
The Corporation complied with all mandatory statutory requirements from remittance of
statutory deductions within the set time line to holding of Board meetings.

g. Metcriel errcers in statutory end other financiel obligetions
As at the close of the financial year, the Corporation did not have any material statutory
arrears.

10. Environmental end Susteinrbility Rcporting

i. Sustrinebilify Strrtcgy end Profilc

The re-organization of KOFC operations is aimed at re-aligning its strategic plan to meet its
expanded mandate as set out in Legal Notice No. 2 (Amendment Order) of l9s December 2020
and the National Security Industrialization Policy Implementation Strategy. The revised Legal
Notice mandates the Corporation to manufacture hardware machinery and equipment, produce
defence articles, manufacture apparels, assemble and manufacture motor vehicles, construct
roads, water pans, buildings and other structures and carry out Food Processing. Towards this
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end, revision of Strategic Plan, development of Implementation Matrix and determination of
resource requirements is clearly set out.

The proposed implementation in the short term aims at increasing ammunition production

capacity to meet the National security requirement and attain new capability and flexibility to

meet the emerging requirements due to change of weapon choice. Critical also is the need to

complete Phase II and III of Food Processing Factory in-order to supply packaged MREs as

required within the stipulated timelines. This will in-turn be a milestone towards achieving

self-reliance in defense combat supplies to KDF and other Security Agencies, both nationally

and in the entire region as enshrined in East Africa Working Group (EAWG) on cooperation

on shared resources. The outcome of such targeted investments will be a secue nation and a

self-reliant defense. The key beneficiaries of this project are the Citizens of Kenya, Securiry

Agencies and the Region at large.

ii. EnvironmentPerformance
Armually, the Corporation plants over quantity 30,000 trees both for Corporate Social

Responsibility and planting in its farm blocks. ln FY 2022123, KOFC planted quantity 35000

seedlings ofvarious species ofindigenous trees. This has contributed to the current tree cover
ofquantity 427 acres, which translates to about 5 % ofthe total forest cover.

The efforts have faced many challenges mostly attributed to climate change and acceptability
by the neighbouring communities who tend to uproot most of the seedlings planted. However,
the Corporation has continued to engage the locals in the tree planting activities to improve on
their acceptability to the activities.

The Corporation's Waste Management Policy deals with issues relating to waste on land,
defining all aspects of waste management through industrial processing activities aimed at
producing useful and safe products through; reducing, reusing, recycling, or composting waste;
by doing this, it will increase the value of waste over lime to the Kenyan economy.

Waste is a resource that can be managed to achieve economic, social and environmental
benefits. Addressing the waste management challenge effectively at KOFC is critical to
delivering on Kenya's constitutional right to a clean and healthy environment for all, advancing
the circular economy to create greenjobs and wealth from the waste sector, and advancing the
nation's sustainable development goals.

Types of Solid Waste Management at KOFC
a. Hazardous wastes.

b. Industrial wastes.

c. Bio-medical wastes.

Environmental benelits of proper waste mtnagement:

a. Proper waste removal helps improve air and water quality as well as reduces
greenhouse gas emissions.
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u. It helps in minimising the extmction of resources along with reducing pollution and

energy consumption which is associated with manufacturing new materials.

c. Promotes health and sanitation.

d. Reduces pest infestation.

e. Protects you from biohazards.

f. Improves community health.

g. Protects the environment.

h. Ensures physical safety.

l. Adds to waste energy.
j. Earns money.

Sustainable waste management is also fundamental to delivery of each of the govemment's

"Big Four" national priorities. The main advantage of sustainable waste management is to
lessen the impact on the environment, by improving air and water quality and contributing to

the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. Besides, reducing food waste also helps reduce the

heavy environmental cost of producing n:cre.

Most sustainable waste management;
Recycling saves energy, helps keep materials out of landfills and incinerators, and provides

raw materials for the production of new products. When waste caffrot be prevented, recycling
is the next best option. Recycling is more than extending the life of landfills.

I . Employee Welfare:

KOFC Hiring Process and Equity
The Corporations is fully aware that its efliciency depends on the quality ofemployees it
engages. As stipulated under KOFC StaffTerms and Conditions of Service Manual, it is the

Corporation's policy to attract and recruit candidates qualified in terms ofacademic, have the

required experience/skills or who can be trained for effective work performance to achieve
the Corporation's objectives.

KOFC is an equal opportunity employer and its recruitment does not discriminate on the
basis ofgender, age, race, and ethnicity or entertain any other form of discrimination. KOFC
fully ensures compliance with the provisions of article 232 (h) and (i) of the COK, 2010.

All appointments are made with the approval of the Managing Director or Board of Directors
as the case may be, and within the approved Staff Establishment

KOFC specific polices guideline in the hiring process are as follows:

a. The Corporation will strive to recruit and select the best-qualified candidates

to support its vision and mission.
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b. Equal opportunities shall be provided for all persons throughout the

Corporation in recruitment, appointment, promotion, payment, training, and other

employment practices without discrimination against people based on race ethnic,

gender, disability, national origin, colour, religion, marital status, or political

affiliation.

c. Employees shall be correctly placed on the occupations that match their skills

and abilities while taking cognizance of special needs.

d. Recruitment of Employees shall be done as per the recruitment policy and

procedures for all cadres of staff. Equity shall be exercised at all times.

e. The recruitrnent and selection process should not take more than six (6)

months.

f. Appointments in all cases are made in accordance with the existing Job

Descriptions and specifications for various cadres of staff in their respective fields of
employment.

Stakeholder engagements

In the hiring process, the Corporation ensures stakeholder engagement through media

advertisemenl ofvacant positions and selection to employment.

Skills Improvement and Career Management

The Corporation recognizes the need for training and development ofall its employees. The

Corporation therefore offers training opportunities to all deserving staff in order to equip

them with the necessary skills to improve performance and career progression.

Training and skill improvement programs are geared towards addressing identified staff

performance gaps and ensure continued supply of relevant knowledge and skills to the

Corporation.

Training Needs Assessment (TNA) is conducted on annual basis to determine if a training

need exists and to identifu the specific training required to fill the gap. The training

requirements and programmes are factored in the annual budget.

Staff Performance Appraisal is a critical component of the human resource management

function in the Corporation. The overall objective ofthe appraisal system is to manage and

improve perlormance by enabting a higher level of staff participation and involvement in

planning, delivery and evaluation of work performance.

The Staff Performance Appraisal is an annual exercise in the Corporation and assists the

management in making critical decision on staff reward, promotion, deployment and training.
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Safety end Compliencc with Occupetionel Sefety end Hcelth Act 2007

11.n,l O.an-"e Factories Corporaiion (KOFC) is committed to the goal of providing and

maintaining a healthy and safe working environment, with a view to continuous improvement'

This goal is only achievable by adherence to established objectives striving to exceed all

obligations under applicable legislation, and by fostering an enthusiastic commitment to health'

safety and the environment within KoFC personnel, conffactors and visitors. In particular:

a.Management,workingincooperationwiththeHealthandSafetyComminee'
will strive to take all reasonable steps to reduce workplace hazards to as low as reasonably

achievable.

b. Supervisors and managers are held accountable for the health and safety of all

employees under their supervision. This includes responsibility for applicable training

andinstruction,appropriatefotlow-uponreportedhealthandsaferyconcems,and
implementation olrecommended corrective action. This accountability is integated into

the performance appraisal system.

c. Supervisors, workers and visitors are expected to perform their duties and

responsibiliiies in a safe and healthy manner, and are accountable for the health and

safety of themselves and others.

d. KOFC is committed to providing all necessary training and instruction to ensure

that appropriate work practices are followed on the job, and to promote their use off the

job.

e. Ifnecessary, KOFC will take disciplinary action where individuals fail to work

in a healthy and safe manner, or do not comply with applicable legislation or corporate

policies and procedures. Health, safety, the environment and loss control in the

workplace are everyone's responsibility.

KOFC expects that everyone will join in our efforts to provide a healthy and safe working

environment on a continuous day to day basis. Only though the dedication and efforts of all

individuals can KOFC succeed in providing a healthy and safe working environment.

Merkct Plece Precticc

a. RcsponsibleCompctitionPractice
Kenya Ordnance Facroriei Corp6ration (KOFC) has put efforts towards the following

in their day to day running of business:

(i) Anticorruption Policy: KOFC ensures that it systematically and

comprehensivelyrewardsformoreresponsiblepracticesinbusinessand
penalizes for the converse.

lY.
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(ii) Apolitical involvement: KOFC beings a security installation and does

not involve itselfto politics; it serves the goverffnent ofthe day'

(iii) Fair competition and respect for competitors: KOFC has time and again

maintained responsible ethics with their competitors by achieving competitive

advantages through superior performance and not through unethical or illegal

business practices. It insists on transparency other than making improper

agreements with or colluding with competitors' To ensure that it has the

competitive edge, it capitalizes on supply of quatity products, timely delivery

and keeping customer focus as the driving power'

b. Responsible Supply Chein end Supplicr Rclations
Kenya Ordnance Factoriis Corporation Procurement Department processes are fair,

equitable, transparent. competitive and cost- effective. It starts with budgeting and ends

when the supplier is paid. The procurement processes are govemed by Public

Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 and Public Procurement and Asset Disposal

Regulation 2020. The stages are:

a. Budgeting.

b. Purchase Plan.

c. Identification of need, Specifications and Requisition'

d. RequisitionAuthorization.

e. Sourcing.

f. Tender Opening.

g. Tender Evaluation.

h. Contract Award.

i. Receipt and Acceptance, Quality Control, Recording and Storage'

k. Payment of SuPPliers.

To build a cordial supplier relationship, the department has;

a Effective Communication Charurels - The department has effective

communication channels where suppliers can be engaged to air out their

concems and feedback given promptly e.g. Office Emails and Telephone'

b. Respect - The department demonstrate integrity and appreciate them for

the value-add they provide to the organization. This helps to build trust and

with that trust comes endless possibilities to increase performance through

innovation and problem solving.

c. Openness and faimess in procwement processes. This includes sharing

information including tender results. Suppliers are notifying on the tender

results immediatety the tendering process is finalized and demonstrate

willingness to work together to achieve the objectives of the agreement'

xxxllr



KENYA ORDNANCE FACTORIES CORPORATION
Annual Rcport end Finaocial Statemcnts for thc Year ended Junc 30, 2023

d. Payment are done on first come first paid basis'

c. Responsibtc Merketing and Advcrtisement

KOFC has been practicing fiansparency, avoid false comparison, protection ofconsumer

data and privacy, committing to sustainability and human rights, maximizing benefits and

minimizing risks, no exaggeration of product attributes or price, responding meaningfully

to consumer concems, avoiding false unverified claims and being diligent in enforcing

policies to maintain ethical marketing practices.

d. Product StcwardshiP
KOFC have put the following measures to safeguard consumer rights and interests:

a. Right to safety: The corporation ensues that the products sold to customers are

of high quality and meet up the set standards.

b. Right to choose: KoFC encourages its clients to be assued of satisfactory

quality and service at a fair price.

c. Right to seek redress: KoFC provides ways for customers to air their complaints

through the customer care office, suggestion boxes and a customer care remark book,

through this their complains are adequately addressed.

d. consumer Protection Act: KOFC adheres to customer Protection Act to ensue

good services and relationship between the customer and the corporation'

e. Right to consumer education: KoFC educates its consumers ofits products and

services to better equip them with the knowledge to ensure they are suffrciently

informed.
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v. CorporateResponsibility/CommunityEngagements

KOFC commitment to its stakeholders is to improve the quality of lives of the community

surrounding its installations through corporate Social Responsibilities. we take our social and

environmental responsibility seriously and support the communities and the environment

within which we do our business. The Board and Management believe that Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR) programmes should be relevant, impactful, and sustainable. The Board

takes overall responsibility for the continued development and implementation of appropriate

social and environmental policies ofthe Corporation. Our focus is on empowerment of youth

women and persons with disabilities. The Corporation reaches out to communities along the

waterline by connecting them to the pipeline to access safe and cleaner water. During the year

under review, the Corporation was involved in one CSR activity, Environmental Conservation'

The Corporation relies on the environment extensively for its business, including timber for

packaging of Ammo. Besides, the corporation is involved in tree-planting within it vast land.
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I l. Report ofthe Directors
The Dircctors submit thcir report together with the audired financial statements for the year ended June
30' 2023 which show the state ofthe Kenya ordnance Factories corporation Affairs.

Principal Activities
The Corporation principle aclivities are to:
a. Manufacture of military hardware, machinery and equipment.
b. Produce defense articles.
c, Manufacture apparels.

d. Assemble and manufacture motor vehicles.
e. construct roads' water pans, buildings and other structures and carry out
food processing.

The corporation also engages in other activities normally connested with and incidenal
to the object statcd above as the Board may, with approval ofthe president detcrmine.

ii Results
The profit for the year was Ksh. 122,248,51t,00.

iii Directors
The members ofthe Board of Directors who served during the year are shown at page
vii to viii. During the year, 5 directors retired and were replaced.

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kenya ordnanoe
Factories corporation in accordance with Article 229 of the constitution ofKenya and
thc Public Audit Act 2015.

iv Auditors

By the Order ofthe Board

Y Kerubo
Brig

Secletary to the Boad ?6Jmltels
Sign
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12. Strtement of Directors Responsibilities

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Section 14 of the State

corporations Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of Kenya

ordnance Factories corporation which gives a ffue and a fair view of the state of affairs ofthe

corporation as at the end ofthe financial year and ofthe operating results ofthe year. They are

also required to ensue that the corporation maintains proper accounting records which disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position ofthe corporation. They are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Corporation'

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the state corporations

financial statements which give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs of the corporation as

at the end of the financial ye.i- 2022123 ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes:

i . Maintaining adequate financial management arangements and ensuring that

these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period'

ii. Maintaining proper accounting records, which discloses with reasonable

accuracy at any time, the financial position ofthe Corporation'

iii Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are

free fiom material misstatements, whether due 1o enor or fiaud'

iv Safeguarding the assets ofthe Corporation'

v Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies'

viMakingaccotrntingestimatesthatarereasonableinthecircumstances.

The directors accept responsibitity for the corporation's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgment

and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) and in the

manner required by the PFM Act and the state corporations Act. The Directors are of the

opinion that the corporation's financial statements give a true and fair view ofthe state of the

corporations transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and the corporation

financial position as at that date. The directors further confirm the completeness of the

accountin! records maintained for the Corporation which have been relied upon in the

preparation of the corporation's financial statements as well as adequacy of the systems of

intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the corporation will not

remain a going concem for at least next twelve months from the date of this statement.
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Approval of the flnrnclal statements

Thc Kenya O

Directors on...

Gen F O Ogolh

Chrirmen of the Board

'tr:7i1-;3*'#:ffi":i1:1.ffi*'nts were approved bv the Board or

MajGenDNNKamuri
Meneglng Dlrector
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REPORT OF THE AUOITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA ORDNANCE FACTOR]ES
CORPORATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Ordnance Factories
Corporation set out on pages 1 to 44, which comprise of the statement of financial position

Repor, of rhe Auditor-General on Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporationlor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of compartson of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act ,2015. I

have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the State
Corporations Act, Cap 446.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Long Outstanding Payables

The statement of financial position reflects prepayments of Kshs.277,354,628 as
disclosed in Note 25(b) to the financial statements. The relates to prepayments made by
the Ministry of Defence for product purchases which have remained unsettled since
201112012 financial year. Although Management explained that the Corporation and the
Ministry of Defence reached an agreement for the Corporation to issue a credit note for
the outstanding amount, the balance was still outstanding as at 30 June, 2023.

No explanation was provided for failure to treat the outstanding payables as first charge
in the subsequent years.

2. Long Outstanding Value Added Tax Expenses

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.944,971,508 under trade
and other receivables which, as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements, includes
an amount of Kshs.111,957,288 in respect of claimable Value Added Tax (VAT). As
previously reported, the claimable VAT of Kshs.l 11,957,288 includes an amount of
Kshs.68,861,381 indicated as due from the Ministry of Defence and Kshs.43,095,907
indicated as VAT erroneously withheld on ammo sales which has been long outstanding.

Further, the trade and other receivables balance of Kshs.944,971,508 also includes a tax
recoverable balance of Kshs.12,859,976 in respect of VAT refund due from the Kenya
Revenue Authority (KRA), which has been outstanding for more than three (3) years.

ln the circumstances, the existence and recoverability of the long outstanding debt
totalling Kshs.124,817,264 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordancr with other ethical

o
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requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financlal statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 20'15, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Failure to Meet the Board Meeting Thresholds

Review of the Board of Directors records revealed that, the Management Board
established Strategic Committee, Finance and General-Purpose Committee and Audit
and Risk Committee to facilitate the smooth running of the corporation. However, the
Board Committee documents provided for audit revealed that the Board held only one full
Board meetings on 22 June, 2023 and two Board Committees meetings '18 January, 2023
and 1 3 June 2023 during the year under review.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Ordnonce Factories Corporationfor the year ended 30 June,2023
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Failure by the Board of Management and the Board Committees to hold meetings as per
guidelines is a contravention of the requirements of Circular Ref. No. OP/CAB.9/1A of
11 March, 2020 and may erode the governance responsibility entrusted to those charged
with governance.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. lbelieve that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern, and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions

Report olthe Auditor-Ceneral on Kenyq Ordnance Factories Corporationfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023
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of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 20'15 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Anicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

a

a
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. lf lconclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Corporation to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA cBs
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

16 April,2024

Report of the Auditor-Aeneral on Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation for the year ended 30 June, 202j
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Kenya Ordnance Factories Co
end Financial Statements for theyelr ended June 30,2023

rporation

Annual Report

14. Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive Income for the year ended

30 June 2023.

Revenueg

604,021,182675,686,9766Revenue from Sales

(788,866,022)(587,981,570)7Cost of sales

(184,8,14,840)87,705,406Gross profit

Other income

494,409,510507,299,4108Grants from the national government

7 30 I I929,567,1029Finance income

609,666,961468,875,045l0Other income

(3s,e90,86s)l1Foreigr exchange gains / (losses)

926,512,E221,037,456,098Total revenues

Operrting erpenses

(752,186,647)(889,999,166)t2Administration costs

(6,040,202)13Selling and distribution costs

(812,000)
Other Operating ExPenses

(752,998,647)(895,039,368)Total operating exPenses

173,514,175r41,416,730Profit/Qoss) before teration

(1,292,44s)(19,168,219)15Income tax exPense(credit)
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

ffiffiFLffi ilffiffi#t
Assets
Non-Current Assets

9,775,369,681.75 9,805,08 1 ,633.00Proper8, Plant and Equipment t6
9,805,081,633.00Total Non-Current Assets 9,775369,681.75

Current Assets
t7 I ,554,666,810.00 995,757 ,481.00Inventories

49s,646,645.00Opening lnventory Adiustment
Biological Assets l8 222,903,971.95 23 I,408,009.00

769,787,352.00Trade and other Receivables l9 944,971,508. l6
128,120,176.65 335,500,000.00Short-Term Deposits 20

66,126,690.00Bank and Cash Balances 2t 86,689,406.44
2.937351,873.20 2,894226,177.00Total Current Assets u.ffi#xtliffi'-fl. uirrlutffi

Equity and Liabilities
Capital and Reserves

5.369.026.s 14.00 5.369,026,5 14.00Govemment Investment 22
6,975.261,655.00 6,97 5,261,655.00Revaluation Reserve t3
(662,930,755.63) ( I I 5,952,557.00)Retained Earnings

Capital And Reserves I1,681357,413.37 12,228335,612.00
Non-Current Liabilities

85,489,354.00Deferred Income 24 243,295,161.00
Tax Payable 25(a) 109,583,229.00
Prepayments 2s(b) 277,354,628.00

8s,489,3s4.00Total Non-Current Liabilities 630,233,018.00
Current Liabilitv

25 3 19,061,s98.38 321,146,472.00Trade and Other Payables
Current Tax Payable 26 82,069,s25.51 64,336,372.00

385,482,844.00Total Current Liabilities 401,131,123.89
u

II
#ffiil -.1 ilffi':,-r--;r, -l-I.{: -?, -lffTi-i
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15. Statcmcnt ofChanges in Equity for thc year ended 30 Junc 2023

TotdCapital
Grant

Revenue
Reserve

Revaluetion
Roserte

Government
investment

Note

5,211,570,746 12,043,338,640

51,455,768

172,241,,730

100,000,000

38,220,619)
172,241,730

(8

(l 7,428,951

10,0t 9,652

(681,31tt,000)

5s0.026.332

141

12,22833s,s12
5s0,026,332

015,952,5s7)

7,663,988,513

( 17,428,es 1 )

l 0.01 9.652
(681 ,318.000)

6,975,26r,655

441

5l .45s,768

t00,000.000

5,369,026,514

ustnrcnt lbr rcr aluation ol buildings

ustnrcnt lbr rcvaluation of m/vehicle

ustmcnt lor land revaluation

ustmc " 1br oPening balanc

ustmcnt lbr understaled inventories

As at July l,2021

As of June 30, 2022

Description

Capi talion/conditional grant

Adj
Adj
Ad.i

Adj e

Ad.i

Adj ustmcnt lbr capitation
Net profit Ib

I2Iilsps2ss697s261$551,2022As at Ju
85,4893s4

(49s,646,645)

8,000,000

85,489.354

80.090. 198

l7(a)

24(a)

20(a)

(495,646,645)

8.000,000
(80.090.198)

22.284,391
( 125,081 ,820)

(22.284.391)
(125,08t,820)

1307,562
100,000,000

1.307.562

122,,248,511
100,000,000

122,248.sl1

s369,026514

2s(c)

24

2s(a)

Del'ened income brough

dj g!ql.nt 1!I rPgr,!gf!I!ntotY
Adjustrnent for cash omittcd

ustmcnt lbr delcrred income b/f
Del'ened income trarsl'er to revenue rcserve

ants receivcd during the Year

Profit for the year

t lbrward

Adj

Adj ustmcnt for tax liabilitY

Adj ustmcnt lbr Creditors

Capital gr

4I29S,16l6r'2gfi,1' 6,,975161,655s369,026511At June 30' 2023
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Kenye Ordnence Fectories Co
end Finencial Strtements for th

rporation
ear ended June 30, 2023eAnnual Report

16. Statement of Cash Flows for the yeer ended 30 June 2023

Cesh flows from operating activitics

84,86 1)(10,0(184,1 1s,657)28Cash generated from/(used in) operations

(7,30 r,192)9 (9,s67,102)
Interest received

1,292,445(16,933,656)29Taxation paid

(16,093,608)(210,616,415)Net cesh generated from/(used in) operating ectivities

Cssh flowg from investing activities

(105,832,376)l6 (93,76't,794)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

7,301,1929,s67,1029lnterest received

(98,531,184)(84200,692)Net cash generated from./(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

100,000,000r00,000,000Govemment investrnent

51,4s5,768
Previous year adjustrnent

151,455,768100,000,000Net cash generated from,(used in) fnancing activities

36,830,976(194,8r7J0OIncrease(decrease) in cesh end cash cquivalents

364,795,677401,626,690Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

8,oo0,ooo20(a)Adjustment for opening tr'ired Deposit
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Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation

Annual Re rt and Financiat Statements for the ar ended June 30' 2023

17. statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the period ended 30 June 2023

%KshsKsbsKshslGhsKshsReYenue Reduction in on83Vo142,890,1'14,9',16675818,57?,150818,57?,150Sale of Ammunition
lOSo/o(l r,209,824)t50,149 044t38,939220t38,939 220SalesB demandto hiSho lead'145o/o67,758,8462t't 642,983r49,884,137149,884,13'.1Farm and Milling Sales

Reduction in demand7g%ot6,6M,M462,452 61779,056,66179,056,61Bottled Water Sales
Reduction in demand35o/o5,552,967973,2628,s26,229E,s26,229DEFKITCH and GED Sales
Increase in demandt35'/.(l,831,584)7,038 4345,206,8505,206,850Water SalesPi the fundslncrease in debtors n80o/o2,432,8989,56'l t0zt2,000,00012,000,000Finance Income 7y/ot23,765479,81'l603,582603,5t2ofGeneral StoresDi [,ow seasons23Yo123,357,0'1536,642 925r60,000,000160,000,000DFPPF Sales 100%135,000135,000,000r 3s,000,000Recurrent Grant l0V/o100 000,000100,000,000100,000,000Farm Mechanization Grant customersDe tn2100/o(494,1ls,3l8)944,97 I 509450,8s6,191450,856,191balances/ Ammo debtors

(283,9s.1,649)202,058,650,020Total lncome

nditureEr deliDe't40/o225,503,621651,988,6448',t7 ,492,26587',t ,492,265Materials for Ammo Production deliDela80%I r,573,39646,638,62458,212,02058,212,020Carbide and Non Carbide Tools
97o/o768,80129,469,49530,238,29630,238,296aresMachine Maintenance 13lYo(fi,22r,692\41,3s4,2s136,132,55936,132,ss9Parts for Tools ProductionAuxili

Oo/o21,644,52521,644,52521,644,525calsandles ChemumabConsuA x ary t ack of fund53o/o2,5 rs,0902,8ss,5835,3'10,673s,370,673Chem icals for Water and Effluent Treatrnent
I ack of fund78o/o187,9406'12,060860,000860,000New Manuals and Technical Joumals
tack of fund29o/o2,569,293I,02E,8453,59E,1383,598,13Eirs and Maintenance of Buildin lack of fund7 40/o3,4t9,3579,933,608t3,3s2,965t3,352,965irs and Maintenance ofVehicles
I-ack of fund5'/.838,6004l,400880,000E80,000General Maintenance of Roads
Lack of fundOo/ol,000,000I,000,000I,000,000ERP Maintenance l,ack of fund4lo/o1,892,1l0t,3l'1,9563,210,0663,210,066uter Expenses and Software
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Kenya Ordnence Fectorics CorPoretion
rt rnd Finenciel Strtemcnts for the ycer cndcd June 30, 2023Annuel Repo

18. Notes to the Finencirl Strtemcnts

I . Gcnerel Information
KOFC is established by and derives its authoriry and accountability from the Legal Notice

Nol25,of25JuIylggTCap446ofTl.eStateCorporationAct.Theentityiswhollyowned
by the Govemment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is

to manufacture military hardware, machinery and equipment and may engage on incidental

activities essential to its object.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes. the balance sheet is represented by the

statement of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements'

2. Stetemcnt of Compliancc and Basis of Prcparetion

Thefinancialstatementshavebeenpreparedonahistoricalcostbasisexceptforthe
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property. plant and equipment'

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable arnounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value'

ThepreparationoffinancialstatementsinconformitywithlntemationalFinancial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions' It also requires

managementtoexercisejudgementintheprocessofapplyingtheCorporation'saccounting
policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings' which is the

functionalarrdreportingcuTencyoftheCorporation,andallvaluesareroundedofftothe
nearest Kenya shillings. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

the PFM Act, the state corporations Act and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years

presented.

9



Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation

Annual Report and Finencial Statements for the year ended June 30' 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3.ApplicationofNewandRevisedlnternationalFinancialReporting
Standards (IFRS)

i.Newandamendedstandaldsandinterpretationsinissueandeffectiveinthe
year ended 30 June 2023'

Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after lst

lartnry 2023.

The new standard establishes

recogrition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of insurance contracts issued. It also

requires similar principles to be applied to

reinsurance conEacts held and investrnent

contracts with discretionary participation features

issued. The objective is to ensure that entities

provide relevant information in a way that

faithfirlly represents those contracts.

does not issue insurance contracts.The Company

principles for theIFRS 17

Insurance

Contracts
(issued in May

20t7)

The amendments

are effective for
annual rePorting

periods begirning
on or after January

1,2023.

The amendments, aPPlicable to

beginning on or after lst January 2023, introduce a

definition of 'accounting estimates' and include

other amendments to LAS 8 to help entities

distinguish changes in accounting policies from

changes in accounting estimates

annual periodsIAS 8.

Accounting
Policies, Errors,

and Estimates

The amendments

are effective for
annual periods

beginning on or

after January 1,

2023.

The amendments, aPPlicable to ann

beginning on or after lst January 2023, require

entities to disclose their material accounting

policy information rather than their significant

accounting policies.

This has not brought about any change to the

accounting policies disclosed

ual periodsAmendments to
IAS I titled
Disclosure of
Accounting
Policies (issued

in February

2021)

The amendments

are effective for
annual periods

beginning on or

after Juruary I,
2023.

The amendments, aPPlicable to

beginning on or after lst January 2023, nanowed

the scope of the recogrition exemption in

paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 (recogrrition

exemption) so that it no longer applies to

transactions that, on initial recogrution, give rise to

equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences.

annual periodsAmendments to

IAS 12 titled
Deferred Tax

Related to

Assets and

Liabilities
arising from a

Single
Transaction

10



Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporetion
Annual ort and Financial Statements for the r ended June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Statemenb (Continued)

The Directors have assessed the applicable standalds and amendments. Based on their

assessment of impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a

sigrrificant impact on the company's financial statements'

ii. New and emended standerds and interprctations in issue and efiective in

the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their

assessment of the potential impact ofapplication ofthe above, they do not expect that there will

be a sigrrificant impact on the company's financial statements'

The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or

after January l, 2024.

Earlier application is

permitted.

The amendments, aPPlicable to

annual periods beginning on or after

l st January 2024, clari$ a criterion in

IAS I for classiffing a liability as non-

current: tlle requirement for an entity

to have the rightto defer settlement of
the liability for at least l2 months after

the reporting period

Amendments to IAS

I titled

Classification of
Liabilities as

Current or Non-

current (issued in
January 2020,

amended in October

2022)
The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or

after January l, 2024.

Earlier application is

permitted.

The amendment, applicable to annual

periods beginning on or after lst

January 2024, requires a sellerJessee

to subsequently measure lease

liabilities arising from a leaseback in

a way that it does not recognise anY

amount ofthe gain or loss.

Amendment to IFRS

16 titled Lease

Liability in a Sale

and Leaseback

(issued in
September 2022)

The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or

after January l, 2024.

Earlier application is

permitted.

The amendments, aPPlicable to

annual periods beginning on or after

lst January 2024, imProve the

information an entity provides about

liabilities arising from loan

arrangements for which an entity's

right to defer settlement of those

liabilities for at least twelve months

after the reporting period is subject to

the entity complying with conditions

ed in the loan arrangement.specifi

Amendments to IAS
1 titled Non-current

Liabilities with

Covenants (issued in
October 2022)

11



Kenye Ordnence Fectories CorPoretion
rt rnd Finenciel Strtcmcnts for the ycar ended June 30, 2023Annual Rcpo

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

iii. Earty edoPtion of standerds

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year

4. Summary of Accounting Policies

Theprincipleaccountingpoliciesadoptedinthepreparationofthesefinancialstatementsare
set out below:

e) Rcvenuc recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Corporation expects to be

entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third

parties. The corporation recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a product or

service to a customer.

i)Revenucfromthcsalcofgoodsandscrviccsisrecognizedintheyearinwhich
ihe Corporation delivers products to the customer, the customff has accepted the

products and collectability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assured'

ii) Grants from Nrtionrl Government are recogaized in the year in which the

Corporation actually receives such grants' Recunent grants are recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in

the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive

income over the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.

iii) Finence income comprises rnterest receivable from bank deposits' and is

recognized in profit or loss on atime proportion basis using the effective interest rate

method.

iv) Othcr iucomc is recognized as it accrues'

b) In-kindcontributions
In-kind contributions are donations that are made to the corporation in the form of actual

loods *alo, services rather than in money or cash terms' These donations may include

iehicles, equipment or personnel services. where the financiat value received for in-kind

contribuiions 
'can 

be riliably determined, the Corporation includes such value in the

satement of comprehensive income both as revenue and as an expense in equal and

opposite amountsf otherwise, the contribution is not recorded'

t2



KenYe
Annuel Report end Fin

0rdnence Fectorics CorPoretion
encial Statcmcnts for thc Yerr endcd Junc 30' 2023

Notes to thc Finencirl Strtemcnts (Continucd)

Freehold Land

Buildings and civil works

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles, including motor cycles

Computers and related equlpment

Office equipment, fumiture and fittings

c) Propcrty, Plent end equiPment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. certain categories of property, plant and

equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts, being their fair value at the date

oi re-valuation Iess any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses'

Increases in the carrying ajnounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other

comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of

the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are

charged to profir or loss in the income statement. Gains and losses on disposal of items of

prop".ty, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from the disposal

withthenetcarryingamorrntoftheitems,arrdarerecognisedinprofitorlossintheincome
statement.

d) Depreciation and iurpeirmcnt of property, plent end cquipmeut

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated' Capital work in progress

relates mainly to the cost of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil

works and installations.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a

straight-line basis to write down the cost ofeach asset or the re-valued amount to its residual

value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use, as guided by National Treasury

policy on assets dePreciation are:

Nil
1%

2.5%

25%
30o/o

5%

e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value cost comprises direct

materialsand'whereapplicable,directlabourcostsandthoseoverheadsthathavebeen
incuned in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. cost is calculated

using the weighted average cost method.. Net realizable value represents the estimated

selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incuned in marketing,

selling and distribution.

A full year's depreciation charge is reulgnised both in the year of asset purchase and in the

year of asset disPosal

l3



Kcnye Ordnence Fectorics CorPoretion

Annuel Re ort and Financial Statcments for the Year endcd Junc 30, 2023

Notcs to thc Financial StrtemGnts (Continued)

I Trede end other reccivebles

Trade and other receivables are recognized at amortized cost less allowances for any

uncollectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An estimate

ismadeofdoubtfulreceivablesbasedonareviewofalloutstandingamountsattheyeal
end. Bad debts are written offafler all efforts at recovery have been exhausted'

s) Teration
i) Current incomc tex

Cunentincometaxassetsandliabilitiesforthecrrrrentperiodaremeasuredatthe
amountexpectedtoberecoveredfiomorpaidtothetaxationauthorities.Thetaxrates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively

enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates

taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets

is recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial performance'

current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the

amountexpectedtoberecoveredfromorpaidtothetaxationauthorities.Thetax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and

generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken tn the tax retums with respect to

situati,ons in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate '

ii) Dcferred tax

Defenedtaxisprovidedusingtheliabilitymethodontemporarydifferencesbetween
the tax bases ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date-

Deferred tax liabilrties are recognized for all taxable temporary differences' except in

respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled

entities, associates and interests in .;oint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of

the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences wilt not reverse in the foreseeable future' Deferred tax assets are

recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Defened tax assets are recognized to the extent that

itisprobablethattaxableprofitwillbeavailableagainstwhichthedeductible
,"*po.ury differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilized, except in respect ofdeductible temporary differences associated

with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures'

deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the

temporarydifferenceswillreverseintheforeseeablefutureandtaxableprofitwillbe
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized'

t4
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ci.l Strtemcnts for the Yeer
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Notes to thc Finrnciel StrtemGnts (Continucd)

Summery of Accounting Policics

Thecarryingamountofdefenedtaxassetsisreviewedateachreportingdateandreduced
ro the extent that it is no longer probable that suffrcient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the defened tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets

are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become

probablethatfutuIetaxableprofitswillallowthedeferredtaxassettoberecovered.
Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply

intheyearwhentheassetiSrealizedortheliabilityissettled,basedontaxrates(andtax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date'

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside

surplus or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying

transaction in net assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a

legallyenforceablerightexiststosetoffcurrenttaxassetsagainstcurrentincometax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sarne taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

h) Cash and cash equivelcnts

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits,

on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less,

whicharereadilyconvertibletoknownamountsofcashandaresubjecttoinsignificalt
risk ofchanges in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the central Bank

of Kenya and at various commercial Banks at the end of the reporting period. For the

pu.po,..ofthesefinancialstatements,cashandcashequivalentsalsoincludeshortterm
tash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and./or institutions which were

not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year'

i) Trede end other PaYebles
Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost, which

is measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in furure

in respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the entity or not' less any

payments made to the suPPliers.

j) Retirement bcnefit obligetions

koFC operates a contributory retirement benefit scheme for all full-time employees from

July l, 1998. The scheme is administered by trustees is funded by contributions from both

thccorporation and its employees. The company also contnbutes to the statutory National

Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is also a contributory retirement benefit scheme

registered under the National Social Security Act' The company's obligation under the

sch"m" i, Iimited to specif,rc contributions legislated from time to trme and is currently at

Kshs.1080 per emPloYee Per month.
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Notcs to thc Finencirl Strtements (Continucd)

SummerY of Accounting Policics

k) Provision for steff leave PeY

Employees' entitlements to annual leave are recognised as they accrue at the employees

At irovision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

Kenye Ordnancc Frcto
nd Finenciel Strtcment

rics Corporetion
s for the year end

l) Exchenge rete diffcrences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings' Transactions in foreign

currencies during the yearlperiod are fianslated into the functional currency using the

exchange rates pievailing at the dates ofthe fansactions or valuation where items are re-

*a^*ad. Any foreign exchange gains and losses resultrng from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss'

m) Budget information
The original budget for FY 22123 was approved by the National Treasury on 22 December

2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget

in accordalce with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities'

The Corporation's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis using a classification based on the nanue of expenses in the statement of

finarrcialperformance,whereasthebudgetispreparedonacashbasis.Theamountsinthe
financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified

by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget' A comparison of budget

and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget' is then

presentedinthestatementofcomparisonofbudgetandactualamounts.Inadditiontothe
Basis difference. adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for

differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the

financial stalements and the approved budget'
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Accounting Policies

n) Serviceconcessionarrangements
The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession alrangements that it enters into in

determiningtheappropriateaccountingfieatmentanddisclosurerequirements.In
particular,whereaprivatepartycontributesanassetlothearrangement'theEntity
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator

mustprovidetogetherwiththeasset,towhomitmustprovidethem,andatwhatprice.In
the case of assets other than 'whole-oflife' assets, it controls, through ownership,

beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the end

ofthe arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent

that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability,

adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received'

o) Comparative figures
where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended

or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation'

p) Subsequent events

ihere hare been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact

on the financial statements for the year ended June 30' 2023'

5. Significant Judgements and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

ThepreparationoftheEntity'sfinancialstatementsinconformitywithIFRSrequires
,*ug.-".'. to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts

ofrevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in oulcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation
Annual Report end Financial Stetements for the year ended June 30' 2023
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b) Useful livcs end residual vrlues

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators

to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

. The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the

Entity
. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptabitity to changes in

technology and Processes

e The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

o Availability of funding to replace the assets

Kenye Ordnence Fectorics Co

nd Finencial Stetements for th
rporrtion
e year cnd

Notes to the Financiel Stetcmcnts (Continues)

e) Estimetcs end essumPtions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustmenttothecarryingamountsofassetsandliabilitieswithinthenextfinancialyear,
aredescribedbelow.TheEntitybaseditsassumptionsarrdestimatesonparameters
availablewhenthefinancialstatementswereprepared.However,existingcircumstances
and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or

circumstancesarisingbeyondthecontroloftheEntity.Suchcharrgesarereflectedinthe
assumptions when they occur.
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Notes to the Financlat Strtements (Continues)

6. Revenue from contract with customers

1 . Cost of Sales

75 396,613

604 021,182675 686,976Sales of Ammo

Total

Direct Costs
274 544 235398 716,023stock
275 371,6796s1 98 u4Purchascs
s49 1 9147704I

kss:
98,71 022883 338 069stock of raw materialsClo
151 199157Cost of raw materials used

Add
465 082 622175 625,368Direct labour

t461634 I 965Prime cost

OverheadsFacto
t6 055,67638 581lnsurance
26,621 519t5,127 191Electri

8,472 37617,646 781Goods clearance s
20,566 648

Consumables
1 507,630chemi caluent treatrnentefflandaterw
1,205 658

chemicalsLabo
r 8,639 26123 462,371& MaintenanceMachine S

69 r29,536lafion otE 12 c

Plant and
l9 243,469Motor vehicles

0005,45and civil workBui
1,024 131

Fumiture and fi
3,814 178

Waterline and civil works
5I23

74981575 95 426Totel

195,369 017566353,9work-in-
1,416 000I 011 250s

Less:
53,908 5278 481,s03work-in- sClo

I 0l 1,2501 701 000Clo
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

Production Cost of Finished Goods

Openin stock of t'inished oods

(loods available for sale

CIosin stock

8. Grants from National Government

Iles

Recurrent grant
' Other grants (Salaries and allowances)

851,828,603
261.817.03 3

135.000.000

372.299.4t0

990,760,887
20 r .891.864)

135.000.000

3s9.409.510

r 00.000.000

656, 150,950649,933,739
334.609.937201 .894.864

788s87 81 70Cost of ssles

2Vn4It22OTI-'U,3
KshsKshs

10l0607Totel

8(a)othergrantsrelatetosalariesandallowancestosecondedmilitarl,personnelpaidby
MinistryofDcftnce.secondedMilitaryPersonnelaredistributedan-rongvariousK()FC
Factories. other Grants are apportioned according to Seconded Milirary Personnel deployment

as follows:

Cap ital grant

MoD 507.299.41 0 100.000.000

Total 507,299,410

Ammunition
I"arm and Millin
Piped Water

DelKitch 201 2. Field Kitchen & GE

Bottled Water

Bakerv Products

KDF FPF (Dehl

100.000.000

90.571 .783

7.576.462

7.286.008

8.464.547

22.296.798

18.79tt.276

r7.161.1i0

60'7.299.410

96.245.696

7.576.462

8.464,547

22.296.798

18.798.276

1 7.161.1 30

2021n0?22022n023Amount
recognised
in capital

fund.

Amount
deferred
under

deferred
income

Amourt
recognized in

the Statenent of
Comprehensive

Income
KsllsKBhsKShsKShsKShs

Ministry
of Defence

594.409.s 1 0

594,-109,510607,299,410100,000,000

359,409 103 99 l0Totel

I .612.094

2021-20222022-2023Descri tion
KshsKshs

Adrnin

'drated Vegetables)

20

200. 141.106 18'1.2s4.507
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?$2tan22022-2023Dercri
KshsKshs

7,301,1927,102Total 9

Annual Report a

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

9 Finance Income

Interest From Commercial Banks 9.567.102

10. Other Income

Farm and Millin Note l0 (a

Piped Water 7.038,4i4

DefKitch 2012. Field Kitchen & GE 2.973.262

Disposal(s)

I Bakery Products

KDF FPF (Dehydrated Vegetables)

l0(a) Farm and milling income comprise of the following:

Farm and Milli Sales 117.642.983

Fair value loss of Iliolog ical Assets (Note 10(b)) 8.501.037

l0(b) Fair Value gain/(loss)on Biological Assets

o entn Balance

Closing Balance 222.903.972

Fair value inl loss 8,504 037

I 1. Other Gains and Losses

Forei (3 s.9e0.865)

7.30 I ,l q2

1,194.701

100.705.332

231.408.009

2t2t-201:22W2a023Descri
KshsKshs

21s,771,658209.138,946
10.283.760

78.247,15162.452.617Bottled Water
l 9 j,4l8479.8t7

191 .270.915l 50.1 49.044

36.642,925
96r6095468Total

2021a0222022-2023tion
KshsKshs
148.383.807

67.387.851

771220 ITotd

2021-20222022-2023Descri tion

231.408.009) 164.020.158

395 428,167

2o2ta02220224023
KshsKshs

Dercription

Total

n exchan e ins / losses

2l

35,990.865
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Notes to the Fitlancial Statements (Continued)

12. AdministrationCosts

Domestic and household

199 321,124316 129,036Staffcosts ote I
754 3877l54Advertisement and

900 000sAudit
8,601 0753,584 952Bank
4 975 927t,3r7 956ex

288 0002t6,207Communication
93 909

and AdvertisementSales,
14,410,215: Administration ote l2c

4,810 867Motor Vehicle
I 364,000Buildin and Civil Work

256 033
Fumiture and Fi

953Watrline and Civil Work
80t,717Com ters ) 499 0198I 540Director allowances

1,848 15387s 404
55 3803,931 798Electrici s

I 063 270) 009,694General
4 013 919175,706Insurance

166,9873 508 088DSTV and IntemetTel
3,738 488133 800Pos

10,769I 028 845MaintenanceBuil
123,6504t 400Road Maintenance
318 962318,197sMedical

27 982,576
Petroleum Oil and Lubricant

13 42 89920 462,165Motor vehicle s

739 0672 060and PeriodicalsN
981 9371,601 974Official Entertainment

4,564 2896 42f 446and office exs
7r0l1 555and uniformProtective

I 044,000844 74assurance certifi cationISO and
2,306 0002,171 000Rent and rates

07525'76 984sSecuri
I 056 t5783,540

17,625 622l0 7r4,5r5and accommodationTravell
590,777973 696Water and conservation
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Notes to the Financiat Statements (Contilued)

12(a) Staff Costs

Staff cost has been distributed among KOFC lines of business they relate to as follows:

10 584,9806,441 455Field kirchen fabrication
21 074,507iation: Farm and Millin ote l2c

8,43765
Other farm s

921,44978,054,683
Orher mill

1 062,527iation: Bak ote l2c
176 66 r,853200 159,671enseseOther

I 63,219ote l2con: Bottlaterw
57 98 37279 089 329Other Water Bo ex

1115,162watetPi
14,539 737ciation: DFPPF ote l2c

I 18,484 5470 52r 449Other DFPPF ex s

199 2r,12429,036316Administation
465 082 622175 625 58

Anrmurufion
20,629 492Farm and Mil

,0088WaterPi
64,547l0DefKitch 2012, Field Kitchen & GE

37 668 871Bottled Water
46,257 966Bakery Products

5 749 096cCommercial service

l9 65 444

40 485,783

20 184,269

KDF FPF (DehYdrated les)

Casual labourers

Ve
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

I 2(b) Staff cost

Wa es ol tem ra em Io ees

Leave

20.184.269

8.284,969
a

Gratui rovlslons

The avera e number of em Io ees at the end ofthe ear was
9 9

Perrnanent em lo ees - mana ement

Permanent em Io ees - unionisable 308

Tem ra and contracted em lo ees 10

Total

l2(c) Apportionment of depreciation expenses' Depreciation expense is distributed as

lbllou s

Farm and Millin

Administration

DFPPF

I 3. Selling and Distribution Costs

Salaries and wa es of Sales ersonnel

2021-20222022-2023
ilGr--*Description

281 .085,91 5262.53 8.088
Salaries and allowances of errnanent em Io ees

19.265.444

Mcdical insurance schemes
721,400788.400schemess ce rtuna oS c anato ob tu o Sns nco romF,

1.1,901 ,952t6.187.726er's contributions to nsion schemeEm lo
9,41 8,543

Frin e benefit tax

Staff wellare
359,409,510372,299.410rsonnelro secondedIn kind ant Sala

1906Er 5ITotel

3ll
l5

335

2021-20222022-2023Descri
KshsKshs

23.074.507
104,934.39169.129.536Production

I .263.1 lqBonled Water
9,t01 .12414.41 0,21 5

1.062.s27ProductsBake
14.539,737

l6+Totd

2021a0222022-2023Descri
KshsKshs

5.749.096

Sales commtsstons
Sales discounts and rebates

291.l06and Distribution costsOther Sellin
02Total

rMarketin and Promotional ex CNSES
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Notcs to the Financial Stetements (Continued)

14. Opereting ProfrU (Loss)

15. Income Tax ErPense/(Credit)

The operating ProfiV(loss) is arrived at after

credi
583 669 190681 4t6,435ote 12bStaff Costs
114,036 ll5r23 479 742lant andD ation of

499 0198I 540Directors ' emoluments - fees
812,000900 000ar feesAuditors ' remuneration - current

35,990 865lossNet forei ex
,301 1929 s67,102Inter€st receivable

(19,168,219)
Current taxation based on the adjusted Profit for

ote 35the

Current tax: Prior Year U sronnder/ 0ver

deferred taxCurrent

Prior Year Under- vision for defened tax
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Notcs to the Finenciel Statements (Continued)

16. PropertY, Plant and EquiPment

KSHSKSIISKSHSKSHSKSHSKSHSKSHSKSHScosr
!0'/c5'/o,5y.2.50'/o0'/"l'/olt/"0/.DEPRECIATION RATE

I I,600,140S4ss5,544,31925,982,$41t9,9!7,5623,015,864,528279,039,860476,772242682,000,0006,945,000,000lst JIILY 7022

ADruSTMENTS

(REVALUATION)

CAPITALIZED
9t,7tt,790|,3 t 7,09371,300r,782,50983,596,88EADDITIONS

I r,593,90E 3556f61,41226,0533341t99r1,fi23,021,617,037x2,636,18176,772246E2,m0,0006,945,000,m030 JUNE 2023

DEPRECIATION
l,791os&9ll49,988,07020,35s,44340,860,755I,56r,959,090l I1,655,55310,230,000ACCUMULATED .I IIJLZ2

ADruSTMENT
t23,,179,7124,98E,786.9t,102,66729,9U,39175,6t6,1764,167,7226,820,000CHARGE FOR THE YEAR

1,918,538,65354,976,8572t,658,1 l070,845,1461,637,5752661t6A3327517,050,000ACCUMULATED'3 O JTJN 23

9,E0s,(E1 ,6345,sfi2195,626,59179,O76,fi7I,453,905,43E279,039'86,0365,106,68967 t,770,0006,941000,000NET BOOK VALUF.3O JUN 22
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16(a) Futly DePreciated Assets.

a;;;r;";r-il.,fr Kshs 51,000J;i are frrlly depreciated and are yet tobr revalued or disposed.

l6@) Additional assets

17. Inventories

814 070APC Smart UPS
36 323n Printer
38 000Finance Hard Disks

200,000ETR Machines
50 000HP Com
50,000LaserJet Printer
39,600LaserJet Printer
39 600LaserJet Prinrcr
49 00ne SystemPanasonic Tel

Computers

43 800Office Chairs
27,s00Office Chairs

Fumiture

08,670ICentri
1,381,200
1,881,636Centri um
3,811 003TesterPrimer Sensiti

400 000Duma Hand Gun Pistol

Plant and Machinery

34,612 610Cause G Machine
48 84 78Silo

Work in Progress

3U,475 s92883,338 069Raw materials
40,430344 44,035Chemicals oil and lubricants

353 908,s68278 481,503Work ln Pro s
20r 894 864263 847 033Finished

095,81658,222 965Farm and mi
22,207 796DFPPF

1,011 50I 701 000Production scra
24 141,91618 089,343storesB

557 750ls5 994Stati I 626,3409 900,000storeGeneral en
82 73930 910General store

7,999 524t4 348 162Water
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Annual Report end Financial Statements for the yeer ended 30 June 2023

l7(a) opening FY 2021.2022 inverrtories valued at Ksh 495,646,645.00 had been erroneously

U"":i!a *' closi-ng stock in the same FY. This resulted to overstat€d profits in the same FY and

overstated op€ning inventories value for the FY 2022-2023 by the same amount'

Notcs to the Financiel Statements (Continued)

18. Biological Assets

19. Trade and Other Receivables

68,096,644112 3t7,3'.12Maize
157,491 36587,909 500Assorted Trees

5 820 0002,677,000Pastues

a Current receivables
303 85 387776,088 742Trade Receivables ote 27 a
309 458 13126 91 396

3 090 9762,298 512ole 27Staff receivables
6l 94Total current receivsbles

Non-current receivables
2 394 0242,394 024Trade Receivables

26 64r 5707008 I13,

111 957 88lll 957,288Claimable VAT
12 859 976I 859 976Tax recoverable

153140 92Totel non-current receivables

28



303,38s,387776,088,74?Gross Trade Receivables
303 385 387776,088 742

Net Trade Receivables
s Trade Receivablesanal sof

Less than 30 Da
303 385,38777 088,742Between 30 and 60 s

Between 61 and 90

Bet"veen 91 and 120

Over 120 Da

Kenya Ordnance Frctories Corporation

Annual Report enil Finencid Strtemenb for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued)

19 (a) Trade Receivebles

l9 Staff Receivables

19(c) Tax Recoverable

TheCorporationisfollowinguponthelongoutstandingdebtof124,3lT,264.00withKRA
and the MinistrY of Defence.

20. Short Term DePosits

The average effective interest rate on the sholt term deposits as at June 30,2023 was 3 '5Vo (2022:

3.s%).

20(a).Kshs3,000,000.00oncalldepositwhichwasinCoopBankaccounthadbeenomittedin

3 090,9762 298 513Staff receivables

Provision for im loss
3,090 9762 98 513Net staff receivables
3 090,9762,298 513Less : Amounts due within one

Amounts due after one

59 980,377aC ve Bank Of
34 139 800Bank Of

335,500 0004,000 000Commercial BankKen
30 000 000Commercial BankKenya

year 2021 12022 financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Stetements (Continued)

21. Bank and Cash Balances

The bulk of the cash at bank was held at Kenya Commercial Bank and Cooperative Bank' the

Corporation' s main bankers.

Detriled analysis of the cash and cash equivalents

63,352,47185,337,831Cash at bank
I 89 12252,287

Cash in hand

M-
1,485 097I 299 88

t2 9086,689,406
335 500 000128,120 t77ltFixed/on-call

Current Accounto
27 061,30643 979,047I 108,117 961KCB

467 6559,891 421,176 538 969KCB Dollar account
7,894t2l9 040 00235 6001 136,440C ve Bank-Main

5,419 4607,382,2421 14 440 335,600Co ve Bank-
904,2087,307136,440 335 601Co-o ve Bar*-FPF

2,435 931152,398300,297,565,294Banktu
t4 816,048639,178I 001,017 953 900National Bank

7l6385337,832Sub- Total

b On - Call
4 000,00011081179-1KCB

34,139 80035,6001,1 50 MOBank
59 980,376110,440 335,600BankCo

335 500,00030,000 000l l08l179-lKCB
335 0128 120 177

Sub- Total

Othersc
89,122I8752Cash in hand

1 485,0971 99 88
M-Pesa l92 77l3s$ll
Sub- Totel
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

22. Government investment. Govemment investment is the initial amount used in establishing

the [ractory and other additional investments'

23.RevaluationResen,e.Thereserveisasaresultofrevaluationofmotorr,ehicles.three
pu..r Jiu"J and buildings. Lani and building rvere 

'alued 
b1' oflicers from the Ministrl' of Land

and Physical Planning at Kshs 6,975,261 ,655 '00 in 2020'

24. Deferred Income

Total Deferred Income 243 29s,t6t

The deferred income movement is as follows:

Balance Brou ht Forward

24(a)openingbalanceofthedeferredincomehasbeenadjustedupwardbyKshs80'090.198.00
in the Statemenl of Change in Equitl in order to compll'rvith IAS 20

25. Trade and Other Pa ables

Trade ables 3 19.061 .599

Pre ents received
4,054,934

lovee blesEm
Other r ables tax liabilit 109.583.229(

Aging Analysis for Trade and other Pa1'ables

Under one ear

ears 128.644.828

2-3 ears

Over i ears 277.354.628

6loA 42.484.282l-2

25(a). An assessment by Kenya Revenue Authority 
-concluded 

that KOFC had not paid tares

"."rrri.g 
to Kshs 125,6gl,gzil.0o. rsns 15.4gg,5g1.00 had been paid as ar 30 June 2023 and the

balance u'as Kshs 109.583.229.00.

2021a02220224023tion
KshsKshs

85,489,354243.295.t61National Govemment
85,489,354

2021-2022
Kshs

n 20224023
Kshs

165.j1a,552 5l .455.768

100.000,000 100,000,000
Additions
Transl'ers To Income Statement

65.966,41422.284.391
85,489,354

alance Carried Foru'ard 95,r 61243B

202r-2UX22Ur2-2021
KshsKghs

39,736,910
277.354,628277.354.628

ustment lor other ablesAd
321 146 72

Tottl

2022a023 7o of the total 2021-2022 7o ofthe totatr

l3o/o

i9o/o 277,354,628 87%

705 999 319 l0Total
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' Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

.25rb)Non-CurrentprepaymentofKshs2TT,154,623.00relatestomoneyreceivedfromMinistry

;;ilf"; i";;*;d" oriooa, in 2011 but the goods were not collected'

25(c)AnadjustnentofKshsl,30T,562.00intheStatementofChangeinEquityrelatestomonies
receive received t".."ii"a'i***"e scheme in the FY 2O2O-2Oil which had been recognised

as sales.

26. Current Tax PaYable

2't . Retirement Benelit Obligations

incured

The entity contributes to NSSF. This is a defined contribution scheme registered under the National

social security Act. The entity's obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions

legislated from time to time and is cunently at Kshs. 1080 per employee per month. other than

NSSFtheentityalsohasadefinedcontributionschemeoperatedbyICEALionPensionFund.
Employeescontribute3.5%whileemployerscontributeT%ofbasicsalary.Employercontributions
arerecogrrizedasexpet$esinthestatementoffinancialperformancewithintheperiodtheyare

64,3 36,372
Balance b/f

7264 3319l9 168ote 3for theTax
1 435 065Tax on lnterestIthhoTax
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

28. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

29. Tax paid

(a) Reconciliation Of 0Perating
ProfiU(Loss) To Cash Generated
F rom/ sed In erations

172,241,730t41,416,730Profit or Loss before tax

I 14,036,1 l6r23,479,742Depreciation

(67,387,850)8,504,037lncrease/decrease in fair value o

assets

fbiological

218,8E9,996273,400,509Opereting ProliU(Loss) before Working
Ca itsl chrn

(316,86s,269)(5s8,909,327)(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories

30,396,143(17s,184,156)(Increase/Decrease in Trade and
Receivables

Other

57,494,269276,577,316Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and
Pa les

Other

(10,084,861)(184,115,657)Crsh Genereted from.(used In) operations

I 43s 065Tax on InterestWithholdin
591t5 4' Ta,x paidPrevious
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Notcs to the Finenciel Statcments (Continucd)

30. Rcletcd Prrty Disclosures

Governmcnt of KenYe

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of KOFC' holding 100% of the

corporation,s equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-

term lenders of the entity, both domestic and extemal

Other related Parties include:

D

iD

iiD
ir)
v)
vi)

Ministry of Defence.

National Police Service.

KPLC
National Intelligence Service

Key management

Board of Directors
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Trensactions with releted parties

31. CapitalCommitments-c"pita 
*i,-iurr"ot at the y-ear- end for which no provision has been made in these financial

statemenB are

Sales to rclated esa I 484153 601867,793 488
Sale of vemment institutionto I1 153867 793
Total

Purthases from relatedb JJ 76 89955,79033
Purchases of electrici from KPLC

7655 790Totel
Grants from thec 235 000 000235,000 000

Grants from national vt
23523Total

Ex incurred behdfof relatedd no
359 409 510410372of salaries and forPa 103593 99 10

Total

ationt come 2 499 019I 540,268Directors' emoluments
to

192ITotel

224,689 66224 689,366Amounts authorised and Contracted for
rfotedtIacnotN CobutnzesauthoAmounts

115 5t64 56 526Less: Amounts included in Work ln ho
22I160 122
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32. Financial Risk Management

The corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and

liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign culrency. The company's overall risk

managementprogrunmefocusesonunpredictabilityofchangesinthebusinessenvironment
and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting

acceptablelevelsofrisk.Thecompanydoesnothedgeanyrisksandhasinplacepoliciesto
ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history'

The company's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(I) Credit risk
TheCorporationhasexposuretocreditrisk,whichistheriskthatacounterpartywillbe
unabletopayamountsinfrrllwhendue.Creditriskarisesfromcashandcashequivalents,
and deposits with banks, as well as tade and other receivables arrd available-for-sale

financial investnents.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial

positiorl past experienc€ and other factors'
'm" 

.rrryi"g amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements replesenting

the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

collateral obtained is made up as follows:

At 30 June 2023

2,394,024776,088,742778,482,766Receivables from exchange

fiansactions

137,898,83428,s89,908166,488,742Receivables from non-
transactlons

214,809,583214,809,583Bank and cash balances

140,292,8s81,019,4881331,159,781,091Total

At 30 June 2022

25,944,61861s,934,49464t,879,1r2Receivables from exchange

transactions

127,908,219r27,908,239Receivables from non-
transactions

Bank balances

153,852,857615,934,494769,787351Totel
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Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

Thecustomersunderthefultyperformingcategoryarepayingtheirdebtsasthey
continue trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal. The board

of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters

within which the various asp€cts of credit risk management are operated'

ii) Liquidity risk nanagement

Jf,i** responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who

have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the

entry's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The

entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash

flows.Thetablebelowrepresentscashflowspayablebyt}recompanyundernon-derivative
financial liabilities by their remaining contracfiral maturities at the reporting date' The

amormts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due

within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not sigrrificant'

At 30 Jure 2023
705,999,456386,937,857319,061,599705,999,456lesTrade

ion of borrowinCurrent
Provisions

486,s90,322243,295,t61243,295,161243,295,161Defened income
benefit obliEm lo

1,192,5E9,778630r33,01E562356,760949294,617Total
At 30 June 2022

273,299,69443,79t,844317,091,538ablesTrade
ion of borrowinCurrent

Provisions
85,489,35485,489,354Deferred income
4,054,9344,054,934benefit obli onEm

273299133336,132406,635Totrl
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(iii) Market risk
The board has put in place an intemal audit flrnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal

accounting and operational controls'

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of

financial instruments. The objective ofmarket risk management is to manage and control market

risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. overall responsibility

for managing market risk r€sts with the Audit and Risk Management Committe€'

The company's Finance Departnrent is responsible for the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and fusk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies'

There has been no change to the entity's exposue to malket risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreigl currencY risk
the ertity has transactional curency exposures. such exposure arises through purchases of

goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices

denominated in foreign currencies converted to Kenya Shillings at the time ofpayment using

the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying amount of the entity's foreign currency

denominatedmonetaryassetsandmonetaryliabilitiesattheendofthereportingperiodare
as follows:

At 30 June 2023
Financial assets

Invesunents
9,89r,3429,89t,342Cash

Debton
Financial liabilities

blesTrade and other
Borrowings
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b) Intermt rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely afiected as

a result of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises fiom bank

deposits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk' The interest rate risk

exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits'

Management of interest rrte risk
ro maiage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

offer favourable interest mtes.

iv) Capital Risk Manrgement

the objective ofthe Corporation's capital risk management is to safeguard the Board's ability

to continue as a going concern. The entity capital struchre comprises ofthe following firnds:

33. Incorporation

(The entity) is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan companies Act and is domiciled in Kenya

34. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

35. Income Tax Charge for the Yeer

lncomes and expenditures were allocated and apportioned to specified sources applicable to the

corporation as guided by Section 15(7) (e) of the Income Tax Act. Two sources generated taxable

profitswhileothersaccumulatedtaxcredits.Taxchargefromthetwospecifiedsourceswas
computed as follows:

1

6,975 261,6556.975,261,655Revaluation reserve
rt5,952 5s7662930 756Retained

5 69 026,514s1469 025tal reserve
t2t257 1311 1Totel Funds

Total Borro

Less: Cash and Bank balances

Net Debt/(Excess Cash qqd-ee!!-Equi@)-

l. Farm income
2r7 642 983Farm and Mill sales

04 03
Less: Fair value loss on Biol Assets

209 138 946Totel Farm Income
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.a

Less: Ex cn3e3
505@,474Farm ex s

') 787 840Mi Electrici
33,866 845Mi lant consumables

reciation: Farm and Millin 7

DFPPF Farm 18 965,664

Sub Total Farm enses 97 7

other Farm Admin costs- Gd-50% of30% ofP& L re3

Motor vehicle 3 069 325ex

Travel I and accommodation 1 60t,773

Administati ve salaries and allowances 17 427 694

Tel Intemet and DSTV 526 213

P
20 070

e
693

Com t97

Official entertainment
240 296

Directors fees 231,040

uniforms t,748

and statio 956,092

General tores and lacement of s 308 579
s

T t2 531

Medical ex
47 730

Electrici 589 770

Sale and 81 341Ad
100,809News and odicals

Domestic and Househo ld office 131,31 I

Insurance 8s5 981

Bui and Roads maintenance 154 27

Audit and le fees 135 300

ISO certifications 126 656

Water & Conservanc 146 054

Securi ex 11,548

Rent and rates 355,650

Bank es
537,743

Maintenance ex 160 37

Communication
32,431

Total farm admin en 50o/o*30o/o of P& L 2 4l

Totgl farm er 125

Gross Farm Income 84 58

Less Wear and Tear 947

NET Farm Income 59 110 10

) Interest Income
Fixed sit interest 9 567,103
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19. Appendices

Appendix l: Implementation Status of Auditor-Generel prior year recommendetions

The following is the summary of issues raiscd by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor

TimeframeStatusObservstions from the AuditorsRef

Expected to be resolved in FY2023-

2024
The 63'd BoD meeting resolved the

amount to be treated as granl to KOFC

for purchase of ammo raw materials.

Resolved.

The outstanding balances of Kshs

23,770,9 | 0 owed to suppliers was paid.

I Long Outstanding Payables

The statement of financial position reflects traded and other

payables balances of Kshs 321,146 ,472 which as disclosed in

i.tot" ZZ to the financial statements, includes trade payables of
kshs277,354,628 relating to prepayment made by the Ministry

of Defence lor product purchases which have remained

unsettled since 20 1 l /20 1 2. Although Management explained

that the corporation was to issue a credit note for the

outstanding amount, the balance was still outstanding as at 30

lune,2022.

Further, the trade and other payables balance of khs
321,146,472 includes other payables balances of kshs

39,736,910 which further includes kshs 23,770'910 relating to

money owed to suppliers of raw materials and other suppliers

to the Food Processing Factory (DFPPF) for the years

20l8l2}lg and 20t92020'No explanation was provided for

failure to treat the outstanding payables as first charge in the

subsequent years.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and existence ofthe advance

payments and other payables of kshs 277'353,628 and kshs

Zi,llO,StO respectively as at 30 June,2022 could not be

confirmed.
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TimeframeStatusObservations from the AuditorrRef

Expected to be resolved in FY2023-

2024

KOFC BoD on its 63'd BoD meeting

directed that KOFC pursue the issue

through PS,MoD'

The VAT claim of Kshs 12,859,976 is

time barred and a request for write off
was approved in the 63'd BoD meeting

helJ on 22 Jun 23'

Nol resolved

Long Outstanding Value Added Tex

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other

receivables balances of kshs 765,927,376 which, as discloses

in Note l9(a) to the financial statements, includes claimable

Value Added Tax (VAT) amounting to kshs I I 1,957'288'

As previously reported, the claimable VAT of kshs

I11,957,28S includes an amount of kshs 68,861,381 indicated

as due from the Ministry of Defence and kshs 43,095'907 as

VAT erroneously withheld on ammo sales which has been long

outstanding.
Further, the trade and other receivable balance of kshs

756,927,376 include tax recoverable balance of kshs

12,859,976 related to Value Added Tax (VAT) due ilom the

Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA), which has been outstanding

for more than two Years'
In the circumstances, the existence and recoverability of the

claimable VAT and claimable tax recoverable balances of kshs

111,g57,376 and kshs 12,859,976 respectively could not be

confirmed.

Expenses,

Resolved

This has been complied with and can be

checked on subsequent financial year's

financial statements'

3 Non-Compliance with the Financial Repo

The statement of Directors' Responsibilities and the Statement

of Financial Posilion have been signed by the Managing

Directors (Accounting Officer), the Chief Accountant and a

Director Contrary to the requirement of the revised annual

late of 30 Jur:re, 2o22 which requires that, the

rting Template

reporting temp
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TimeframeStatusObservations from the AuditorsRef
slatemenls are signed by the Managing Director,

Finance and the Chairperson olthe Board of Directors.

the head of

Approval of the HR PolicY

instruments by SCAC will resolve

the observation permanentlY

Resolved

The Corporation has reviewed HR

Policy and forwarded to SCAC for

approval as per Govemment

guidelines.

Lack ofApproved Human Resources Policy Instruments'

Review of the Human Resource Instrument of the corporation

revealed that the Corporation is applying only two Human

Resources Policy lnstrument in the management of human

capital. There are the 'l'erms and Condition of Service approved

by the Board of Directors in July, 2008 and the Staff

Establishment approved by the Board of Directors in

September, 2009. However, these lnstruments are yet to be

approved by the State Corporations Advisory Committee

(SCAC) contrary to circular OP/SCAC. 9l2lllll of I 5 May,

2017.

4

The Board resolved Work Plan must

be approved every financial Year to

avert recurrence.

Resolved.

FY 23/24 Board Work Plan formulated

and approved by 63'd BoD Meeting

held on 22 June 23

5

Evaluation ofthe Corporation's Board records revealed that the

Board of Directors did not develop a work plan for the year

under review contrary to section L9 ( I ) of Mwongozo code of

Governance for state Corporation, 201 5 which requires Board

Members to ensure development ofan annual board work plan'

Work Plan

KOFC BoD to strictly adhere to the

timetines set in the Board Work

Plan.

Resolved.

Due to exigencies of Service duties the

Board members are constrained in

attending the Board meetings .ls

6 Board Commiftee Meeting Thresholds

Review of the Board of Directors records revealed that, the

Board established the strategic Committee, Finance and

General-Purpose Committee and Audit Committee to facilitate

the smooth running of the corporation. However, the Board

41



ra Kenya Ordnance Ilcto ;r.'. I Corporation
Annual Repor rnd Financial State6ents fdrthe ycer endet Jth June 2023

Ref Observetions from the Auditors Ststus Timeframe

and General-Purpose Committee met twice (25August, 2021

and 14 December, 2021) and Strategic Committee met twice
(20 August, 2021 and 22 September, 2021) while the full Board

met once (27 June, 2022) during the financial year 202112022.

Failure by the Board and the Board Committees to hold

meeting as per guidelines is a contravention ofthe requirement

of circular Ref. No, OP/CAB.9/IA of I I March,2020 and may

erode the govemance responsibility entrusted to those charged

with govemance.

institution. KOFC matters

addressed in other forums.
are

However, KOFC BoD approved Board

Work Plan which obligates the Board

to meet quarterly as per Mwongozo.

.t......

Name

Accounting Officer

Kenya Ordnance Factories Corporation

Date
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